
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

April 15, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of agenda. 

4. Consideration and approval of the April 1, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Applications for licenses, raffles, gaming site authorization and special events 

permits.  
c. Resolution authorizing County Auditor/Treasurer to make payment upon demand for 

invoices for appointed County Coroner.  
 

6. Lewis and Clark Development Group Executive Director Brent Ekstrom. 

7. Sheriff Leben: 

a. Detention Center report.  

8. Comm. Munson: 

a. Bismarck Burleigh Public Health.  

9. Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski: 

a. Missouri Valley Complex lease.  

10. Other Business  

11. Adjourn. 

The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on May 6th, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

APRIL 1ST, 2024 

 

5:00 PM Invocation by Chaplain and Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 
 
Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Bakken, Schwab and Chairman Bitner were 
present. 

The Commission received a request to add discussion concerning the Bismarck-Mandan Chamber EDC to 
the agenda. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the meeting agenda with 
addition. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the March 18th, 2024 meeting minutes and 
bills & the February 27th, 2024 special meeting minutes. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration, a complete copy of which are        
 on file and available for inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Bitco Inc 2023 Clerical error by local assessor 

Lot 2, Block 2, 
Apple Meadows 
3rd $36,200  $36,000  

Brian Bitner 2023 Clerical error by local assessor 

Lot 1, Block 2, 
Apple Meadows 
3rd $57,800  $36,000  

Angie & James 
Gross 2023 Lot 2, Block 1, WDH 

100% Disabled 
Veteran $307,000  $271,000  

Charles Welch 2023 
NW 1/4, Section 32, Boyd 
Township 

Property 
qualifies for 
farm res 
exemption $119,700  $65,800  

Henry Vannett 2023 Lot 1, Block 1, Breens 
50% Homestead 
Credit $244,300  $144,300  

Doran & Lori 
Alfstad 2023 Lot 6, Block 1, Valcor 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $526,500  $326,500  

Milton & Lovella 
Wanner 2023 

Lot 3, Block 3, Grande Prairie 
Est 3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $379,900  $279,900  

Keane A Just 2024 
2012 Friendship 28' x 52', 
#MY1334305AB 

50% Homestead 
Credit $90,098  $45,049  



 

Monty Snyder 2023 S1/2 SE1/4 13-141-78 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $164,200  $0  

Edmund Wagner 2024 
1971 Detroiter 14 x 64, 
#6A040801 

Moved to 
landfill $6,881  $0  

Lyle Jocobon 2024 1972 Artcraft 14 x 66, #AC5153 
Moved to 
landfill $7,096  $0  

Perry Kupfer 2024 
1965 Rollohome 61 x 12, 
#K21594 

Moved to 
landfill $5,622  $0  

Doris I Falconer 2023 

Block 1, Replat of Calkins, Lots 
3-6 Capitol View Estates Unit 10 
& parking space 20 & undivided 
interest in common area 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $84,000  $0  

Laverne & Beverly 
Zink 2023 

Block 1, Replat North Hills 4th, 
Tract J & an undiv interest in 
L.31 Common Area Knoll Wood 
Condominium Central 
Association Unit 28 

50% Homestead 
Credit $231,900  $131,900  

Alice Morris 2023 

Block 1, Replat of Calkins, Lots 
3-6 Capitol View Estates Unit 20 
& parking space 4 & storage 
area 18 & undivided interest in 
common area 

50% Homestead 
Credit $85,600  $42,800  

Norbert & Sharon 
Mayer 2023 Lot 15, Block 7, Rolling Hills 2nd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $292,200  $192,200  

Clarence M & 
Marilyn K Hust 2023 Lot 9, Block 2, Wachter's 6th 

50% Homestead 
Credit $239,000  $139,000  

Cathy Darbe 2023 Lot 6, Block 4, Replat of Calkins 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $229,600  $29,600  

Lenis Volk 2024 
1977 Bonnavilla 26 x 44, 
#77S6328 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $11,645  $0  

Earl Hannel 2024 
1980 Rollohome 28' x 40', 
#35254 

50% Homestead 
Credit $12,624  $6,312  

Donna 
O'Shaughnessy 2023 

Block 2, East Hills Addition 
Replat, Lots 2-4 less S 179.10' & 
Lots 5-7 Hay Creek Condos Unit 
5 of Bldg 1 

50% Homestead 
Credit $222,500  $112,500  

Paul L & Colleen 
M McGraw 2023 

Lot 11, Block 1, Tatley 
Meadows VIII 

50% Homestead 
Credit $420,600  $320,600  

Richard E & Judith 
A Mason 2023 

Lot 2, Block 3, High Meadows 
2nd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $366,900  $266,900  

Shirley Jacob 2023 
E 57' of S 1/2 of W 1 acre, Block 
3, Park Hill (Aud lots) 

50% Homestead 
Credit $166,000  $83,000  

Ardythe K Kurle 2023 
Lot 4, Block 6, Boulder Ridge 
7th Addition 1st Replat 

50% Homestead 
Credit $427,600  $327,600  



 

James & Sharon 
Eslinger 2023 

Lot 13, Block 1, Glenwood 
Estates 

50% Homestead 
Credit $377,700  $277,700  

Sharon L Durling 2023 Lot 29, Block 7, Rolling Hills 2nd 
50% Homestead 
Credit $234,700  $134,700  

Vincent Swenson 2023 
Lot 1, Block 34, Northern Pacific 
2nd 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $195,800  $0  

Mary Bullinger 2023 
W 80' of Lots 19-22, Block 7, 
Fisher 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $233,500  $33,500  

Rick Carman 2024 1976 Schult 24 x 48, #135340 
Moved out to 
dump in 2023 $11,751  $0  

Mary K Odegaard 2023 Lot 4, Block 2, Riverside Second 
50% Homestead 
Credit $392,900  $292,900  

Susan Hoff 2023 Lot 5 of Govt Lot 4 28-138-80 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $270,700  $70,700  

Vernon Reiger 2024 
1978 Buddy 14 x 66, 
#04560303L 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $8,199  $0  

Marilyn M Zins 2023 
Lot 7, Block 5, Centennial Park 
4th 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $107,500  $0  

Marlene Flowers 2023 

Block 1, North Hills 6th, part 
Lots 7-8 Dakota Condominiums 
Unit 125 & Garage G-21 & 
parking space P-6 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $198,000  $0  

Gary Nelson 2023 
Lot 11, Block 2, Sibley Island 
Estates 

Condition of 
property $381,000  $344,700  

Donnalee S Ritter 2023 

Block 27, Stein's 4th, Lots 25-26 
& E 21' of Lot 27 Oaklawn 
Townhomes Unit 10B 

50% Homestead 
Credit $225,400  $125,400  

Janice Hoff 2022 

Block 1, Tatley Meadows VII, 
Lot 21 & N 10' of Lot 5 London 
Heights Condominiums Unit 3 

10% Homestead 
Credit $158,800  $146,289  

Janice Hoff 2023 

Block 1, Tatley Meadows VII, 
Lot 21 & N 10' of Lot 5 London 
Heights Condominiums Unit 3 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $180,700  $0  

James & Sharon 
Raile 2024 

2012 Schult Timberland 68 x 28, 
#364202MNAB 

50% Homestead 
Credit $124,025  $62,013  

Nancy Olson 2024 1974 Metamora 14 x 66, #0275 
50% Homestead 
Credit $7,384  $3,692  

David & Marian 
Ellefson 2023 

Lot 21 & 1/2 VAC Alley Adj, 
Block 3, Morningside Heights 

50% Homestead 
Credit $216,300  $116,300  

Donald S & Linda L 
Mertz 2023 

Lot 12, Block 1, Gateway 
Commons 

50% Homestead 
Credit $247,600  $147,600  



 

Kenneth M & 
Brenda Torkelson 2023 

Lot 7 & N 1/2 of Lot 8, Block 43, 
Fisher 

50% Homestead 
Credit $209,300  $109,300  

Frank A Banyai 2023 
L 7-8 E 80 ft, Block 6, Govern 
Pierce 

50% Homestead 
Credit $207,700  $107,700  

William James 
Goldade 2023 

Block 1, North Hills 15th, Lot 4 
less NE 22' 4005 Coleman St 
Condo Assoc Unit 2 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $244,100  $44,100  

Patricia Kershaw 2024 
1974 Champion 66 x 14, 
#0549841864S 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $7,096  $0  

Adam R Volk 2023 Lot 4, Block 4, Prairie View 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $236,000  $36,000  

Andrew & Shirley 
Schaffner 2023 Lot 23, Block 29, Wachter's 3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $270,500  $170,500  

Robert & Sheila 
O'Shaughnessy 2023 

Block 2, East Hills Addition 
Replat, Lots 2-4 less S 179.10' & 
Lots 5-7 Hay Creek Condos Unit 
6 of Bldg 1 

50% Homestead 
Credit $222,500  $122,500  

Krisandra M 
Higgins 2023 

Block 1, Pebble Creek 10th, Lots 
7-8 3313-3327 Arrow Head 
Ranch Condos Unit 1 Building 
33273 

50% Homestead 
Credit $210,000  $160,000  

Barry L Higgins 2023 

Block 1, Pebble Creek 10th, Lots 
7-8 3313-3327 Arrow Head 
Ranch Condos Unit 1 Building 
33273 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $310,000  $210,000  

Carmen Hickle 2023 
Lot 2, Block 1, Tatley Meadows 
VII 

50% Homestead 
Credit $280,800  $180,800  

Margaret Loritz 2023 

Block 1, Haight & Little's, N 
18.49' of Lot 26 & all Lots 27-28 
Williamsburg Condos Assoc 
Unit 1 Building 1945 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $177,800  $0  

Vaughn Chesrown 2023 
Block 6, North Hills 1st,Lot 2 
except E 2' & E 4' of Lot 1 

50% Homestead 
Credit $234,400  $134,400  

Kathlene D 
Poppke 2023 

Block 22, Register's 3rd, Lots 1-
3 & N 18' of Lot 4 Far West 
Condo Unit 103 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $79,900  $0  

Marlene Roles 2023 
Lot 8, Block 2, Horizon Heights 
4th 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit $289,900  $89,900  

 
Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Bitco Inc, Brian Bitner, Angie & James 
Gross, Charles Welch, Henry Vannett, Doran & Lori Alfstad, Milton & Lovella Wanner, Keane A Just, Monty 
Snyder, Edmund Wagner, Lyle Jocobon, Perry Kupfer, Doris I Falconer, Laverne & Beverly Zink, Alice 
Morris, Norbert & Sharon Mayer, Clarence M & Marilyn K Hust, Cathy Darbe, Lenis Volk, Earl Hannel, 



 

Donna O'Shaughnessy, Paul L & Colleen M McGraw, Richard E & Judith A Mason, Shirley Jacob, Ardythe 
K Kurle, James & Sharon Eslinger, Sharon L Durling, Vincent Swenson, Mary Bullinger, Rick Carman, Mary 
K Odegaard, Susan Hoff, Vernon Reiger, Marilyn M Zins, Marlene Flowers, Gary Nelson, Donnalee S 
Ritter, Janice Hoff (2), James & Sharon Raile, Nancy Olson, David & Marian Ellefson, Donald S & Linda L 
Mertz, Kenneth M & Brenda Torkelson, Frank A Banyai, William James Goldade, Patricia Kershaw, Adam 
R Volk, Andrew & Shirley Schaffner, Robert & Sheila O'Shaughnessy, Krisandra M Higgins, Barry L 
Higgins, Carmen Hickle, Margaret Loritz, Vaughn Chesrown, Kathlene D Poppke, and Marlene Roles 
abatements plus the remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. 

Central Communications Director Mike Dannenfelzer explained to the Commission that National 
Telecommunications Week is a nationally recognized week dedicated to honoring the people working in 
public safety: answering both 911 calls and non-emergency calls, and dispatching/managing law 
enforcement, fire, and EMS responses. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve a 
resolution to sign a proclamation celebrating National Telecommunications Week. All members present 
voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Brenda Nagel from Bismarck-Mandan Chamber EDC presented the 
Commission a plaque celebrating the county’s 25 years of membership in the Chamber EDC; this was 
commemorated with a photograph. 

County Human Resources Director Binder presented to the Commission a report detailing employee 
turnover within Burleigh County spanning from 2015 through 2023. It was emphasized that not all turnover 
was bad; some of these were planned turnovers (mainly county employees retiring) and some employees 
were simply not good fits in the county work environment/culture. However, among the county departments, 
Binder specially noted that the Burleigh County Detention Center, Sheriff’s Department, and State’s 
Attorney office had the most difficulties when it came to both hiring and retaining employees. Overall, 
Binder stated that efforts are underway to find ways to increase the competitiveness of Burleigh County 
employment, and that the retention of county employees should be pursued much more seriously. HR 
Director Binder also presented an RFP for a timekeeping & payroll system. She stated that the current 
payroll system not only lacked any meaningful or timely software updates to keep it operational, but that the 
system currently in place was originally designed for usage by school districts, not county governments. 
Binder requested the Commission give her permission to submit the RFP and report back to the 
Commission to present a recommendation. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve 
Director Binder’s request. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. HR Director Binder lastly 
presented to the Commission a salary variance request for an open position in the IT department. Binder 
stated that they needed to revamp a previously existing tech role into a System Administrator position; they 
found an ideal candidate for the job, but the candidate in question had 20 plus years of system 
administrator experience and previously worked with the county’s systems before. Binder requested that 
the salary be adjusted up to a Grade 11 Step 9, which was within the current budget. Motion by Comm. 
Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the salary variance request. All members present voted, 
“AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Finance Director Jacobs gave an update regarding the Detention Center sales tax to the 
Commission, stating that the information from last meeting was forwarded to the Morton County auditor and 
is slated to be discussed by the Morton County Commission on April 11th. Finance Director Jacobs stated 
that in terms of the year-end financial review the books for the 2023 year are effectively closed and 



 

gradually being processed. He then moved on to discuss the general funds and budget variance. The fund 
balance for 2023 changed very little, closing out at $16,618,931, meaning that the county didn’t dip into the 
reserves; the reserves as a percentage are at 47.63%. Jacobs then moved on to present a budget variance 
summary to the Commission, which stated that the county budgeted 4.5 million more than it ended up 
spent. 

County Engineer Hall presented a concurrence letter from Burleigh County to the DOT regarding the 
federal portion of the Highway 10 project. Border State Paving secured the bid below the engineer’s 
estimate, and the project came in under budget as well. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson 
to sign the tax resolution provided by Hall recognizing Border State Paving as the low bidder on the project. 
All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall presented a petition by Tony Fettig to vacate a 
section line in Wild Rose Township; Hall requested the Commission approve a public hearing for May 6th at 
5 o’clock for the petition. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve Hall’s request for a 
public hearing. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall then presented entering into 
contract for the low bidder for the chip seal project, noting that it was well underneath the budgeted amount 
and saying that the company listed has done good work in the past; Hall recommended the Commission 
move forward with the resolution. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to move forward with 
the resolution. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall then presented entering into contract 
for the low bidder for Special Assessment District #76, with Northern Improvement coming in at the low bid 
of the project; Hall recommended the Commission move forward with the resolution. Motion by Comm. 
Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to move forward with the resolution. All members present voted, “AYE”. 
Motion carried. Hall lastly presented an approval of the selection of Bartlett & West construction 
engineering services on the Highway 10 Port Project. Hall noted that this was the federal portion, and that 
once the county accepts the federal dollars to move forward on a project its required to be obligated to 
follow all the federal regulations and standards. Hall recommended the Commission move forward with the 
resolution. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to move forward with the resolution. All 
members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Sheriff Leben requested the Commission to authorize, in accordance with the traffic safety grant, the 
purchasing of two in-car camera systems and one radar. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken 
authorize the purchases. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. Sheriff Liebman also provided 
an update on detention center lawsuit, simply saying they has progressed to filing a lawsuit against the 
contractor and architect on the project. 

Comm. Munson told the Commission that the Bismarck-Mandan Chamber EDC compiled information from 
the Home Rule Charter about the proposed one-cent sales tax to fund county law enforcement needs and 
formatted it into a commercial to educate the public. The Commission then watched the commercial on 
YouTube. Comm. Munson stated that the average homeowner could save approximately two-thirds on their 
Burleigh County property taxes if the measure is approved, and also that approximately 40 percent of sales 
tax revenue collected in Burleigh County come from residents who live outside the county. Comm. Bakken 
informed Comm. Munson that some residents reached out to him concerned about the language and when 
the public gets notice about the home rule and its changes. Comm. Munson explained that the only time it 
would need to be noticed is if an entirely new home rule was created. Amending a home rule does not 
require special meetings, and meetings about the home rule charter were published and open for the public 
to come in to voice their concerns. 



 

Auditor-Treasurer Splonskowski informed the commission that a lease for the Missouri Valley Complex 
recently expired and asked for direction on how to move forward post-lease expiration. In response, 
Chairman Bitner recommended to the Commission to do nothing unless the other party comes to renew the 
lease. No further action was taken. 

Chairman Bitner gave a small update concerning the carbon dioxide pipeline. They’re in the process of 
trying to adjust the schedule of the next public meeting for the pipeline, but there is currently no notice of a 
change in date. 

 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________   
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                            Brian Bitner, Chairman 



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-434 Jack Basaraba 2023 Lot 6, Block 3, North Hills 1st
Error in property 

description $408,400 $369,900
24-444 Raymond R Erickson 2023 E 80' of Lots 14-16, Block 19, Fisher 90% Disabled Veteran $218,400 $56,400

24-445
Jerry F Anderson & Karen 
F Syvertson 2022

Block 12, Northern Pacific, S 50' Lot 7 E 10' 
of N 25' of Lot 7 & E 10' of Lot 8

Error in property 
description $272,600 $259,700

24-446
Jerry F Anderson & Karen 
F Syvertson 2023

Block 12, Northern Pacific, S 50' Lot 7 E 10' 
of N 25' of Lot 7 & E 10' of Lot 8

Error in property 
description $277,500 $264,600

24-455
Patrick Grumley & Toni 
Mathias-Grumley 2022 Lot 6, Block 1, High Meadows 2nd 50% Disabled Veteran $420,600 $330,600

24-456
Patrick Grumley & Toni 
Mathias-Grumley 2023 Lot 6, Block 1, High Meadows 2nd 50% Disabled Veteran $501,600 $411,600

24-475
Burton & Sheri Ann 
Whitmire 2023 Lot 37, Block 22, Cliffords Subdivision

Error in property 
description $307,600 $257,700

24-521 Allen Landeis 2023 Lot 1, Block 8, Skyline Estates 50% Homestead Credit $267,500 $167,500

24-522 Marvin M Herauf 2022 1979 Atlantic 24 x 56, #4790143230 100% Homestead Credit $14,112 $0

24-523 Marvin M Herauf 2023 1979 Atlantic 24 x 56, #4790143230 100% Homestead Credit $14,918 $0

24-524 Marvin M Herauf 2024 1979 Atlantic 24 x 56, #4790143230 100% Homestead Credit $14,918 $0

24-525
Lawrence & Judith 
Fleckenstein 2023 Lot 8, Block 30, Wachter's 3rd 100% Homestead Credit $131,900 $0

24-526 Dan P & Carol J Baillie 2023
Block 50, Northern Pacific 2nd, W 50' of E 
100' of Lots 5-6 50% Homestead Credit $172,500 $86,250

24-527 Robert Shjeflo 2023 Lot 13, Block 3, Replat of Calkins 50% Homestead Credit $218,700 $118,700

24-528 Irma M Bitner 2023 Lot 1 in SE1/4 less Aud Lot A 29-139-79 50% Homestead Credit $284,600 $184,600

24-529 Michael & Della Feist 2023 Lot 7, Block 2, Crescent Ridge 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $287,700 $187,700



24-530 Leila Rewald 2024 1996 Friendship 28 x 52, #MY961544AB 50% Homestead Credit $44,816 $22,408

24-531 Muriel Dienert 2023 Lot 7, Block 3, Mees Country Home Estates 100% Homestead Credit $333,600 $133,600

24-533 Sonja Welder 2023
Block 1, Gateway Commons, Auditors Lot A 
the Sheraton Condominium Unit 2F 100% Homestead Credit $148,500 $0

24-534 Russel & Ardith Wahl 2023

Block 1, Gateway Commons, Auditors Lot C 
of Lot 20 Sheraton Condominiums III Unit 
306 50% Homestead Credit $195,300 $97,650

24-535 John & Diane Sperle 2023 Lot 27, Block 3, Eastside Heights 50% Homestead Credit $256,000 $156,000

24-536
Kenneth & Ginny 
Schwartz 2023 Lot 13, Block 8, Casey's 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $310,800 $210,800

24-537 Michael & Karen Lalonde 2023 Lot 13, Block 11, Meadow Valley 3rd 50% Homestead Credit $321,400 $221,400

24-538
Charles & Suzanna 
Hitchcock 2023

Block 20, Park Hill (aud lots), beg 92.5' N & 
10' E of SW cor of Aud Lot 20, th E 54.7' N 
7.5' E 94.3' N 125' W 149' S 132.5' to pt of 
beg 100% Homestead Credit $275,300 $75,300

24-539
Laure & Barbara Lea 
Goetz 2023 Lot 12. Block 1, Edgewood Village 2nd Add 50% Homestead Credit $351,000 $251,000

24-540 Casper & Leona Glaser 2023 Lot 6, Block 1, Tatley Meadows VII 100% Homestead Credit $292,300 $92,300

24-541 Barbara Blaine 2023

Block 2, Pebble Creek Addition, Auditors 
Lot 1634 of Lot 2 Mapleton Place 
Condominiums Unit 5 100% Homestead Credit $192,200 $0

24-542 Andrew Haldorson 2023 Lot 22, Block 18, Homan Acres 4th 50% Homestead Credit $348,500 $248,500

24-543 Robert Lussenden 2023 Lot 2, Block 4, West Heart Estates 50% Homestead Credit $423,800 $323,800

24-547 Michael Christenson 2023
Block 5, Casey's 1st, Lot 2 + N 10' of vac 
alley adj the 1160 condo unit 3 100% Homestead Credit $142,600 $0



24-548 Mary Ann Metcalf 2023
Block 3, Nagel's 5th, Auditor's Lot J in pt of 
Lots 3-4 50% Homestead Credit $259,500 $159,500

24-549 Anne Reynolds 2023 Lot 4, Block 20, Washington Heights 5th 50% Homestead Credit $272,300 $172,300

24-550
Richard & Bernice 
Schmidt 2023

Block 6, Haight & Little's, W 70' of Lots 1-3 
and W 70' of N 20' of Lot 4

50% Disabled Persons 
Credit $263,600 $163,600

24-551 Kathleen Diann Schulz 2023
Block 3, Southbay 2nd Addition, Lot 126 A 
& undiivded interest in common areas 50% Homestead Credit $428,900 $328,900

24-552 Carl & Malette Young 2024 1979 Rollohome 52 x 28, #33998 50% Homestead Credit $16,162 $8,081

24-553 Derald J Horn Sr 2024 1982 Champion 48 x 24, 0520028664 50% Homestead Credit $14,462 $7,231

24-554 Dennis Wolf 2023 Lot 5, Block 2, Shamrock Acres Second 50% Homestead Credit $235,300 $135,300

24-555 Michael Henley 2023 Lot 6, Block 8, Fort Lincoln Est #2 50% Homestead Credit $187,000 $87,000

24-556 Richard & Marlene Muse 2024 2006 Friendship 56 x 28, #MY062875AB 100% Homestead Credit $86,632 $0

24-557 Peter & Linda Davidson 2023
Block 1, Southport Phase II, Tract 921 of 
part of Lot 4 100% Homestead Credit $431,900 $231,900

24-558 Robert Feist 2023 Lot 7, Block 6, Marian Park 2nd 100% Homestead Credit $258,300 $58,300



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 6 



All Grant/Loan Leverage All Total Jobs Units Projects Annual Dues RLF Fees Total Paid
Combined Totals 52,390,052$      171,485,325$   217,203,532$   801 768 421 $1,458,396 $78,300 $1,536,696
Return on Investment $34.09

LCRDC Other Total Jobs Homes/ Number County All Local/
Type/Project Grant/Loan Dollars Dollars Created/ Housing Projects Annual RLF Fees County

Dollars Leveraged Impact Saved Units Benefiting Dues Paid Paid Paid
Economic Development 32,550,362$                        73,445,277$                       99,323,794$                       801 0 139
Housing 1,271,760$                          37,124$                              1,308,884$                         0 150 8
Planning/Other 22,500$                               96,528$                              119,028$                            0 0 3
Public Facilities 3,445,509$                          2,348,690$                         5,794,199$                         0 0 29
ALL TOTAL 37,290,131$                        75,927,619$                       106,545,905$                     801 150 179 $1,458,396 $21,300 $1,479,696
Return on Investment $25.20
(Return to the county per each $1 contributed)

CWND Other Total Jobs Homes/ Number County Total
Type/Project Grant/Loan Dollars Dollars Created/ Housing Projects Annual RLF Fees County

Dollars Leveraged Impact Saved Units Benefiting Dues Paid Paid Paid
Single Family Homes 8,977,980$                          21,802,073$                       30,780,053$                       232 232
Multi-Family Projects 6,121,941$                          73,755,633$                       79,877,574$                       386 10
ALL TOTAL 15,099,922$                        95,557,706$                       110,657,627$                     618 242 0 $57,000 $57,000
Return on Investment $264.91
(Return to the county per each $1 contributed)

$1,941.36

Lewis and Clark Certified Development Company
CommunityWorks North Dakota

$141.34

Lewis and Clark Regional Development Council

Combined Impact on Burleigh County
1990 through February 29, 2024

Lewis and Clark Regional Development Council

CommunityWorks North Dakota

TOTAL IMPACT

$72.01



PROJECT NAME YEAR CITY  GRANT/LOAN AMT JOBS HOUSING UNITS PROJECT COST
 PRIVATE SECTOR 

INVESTMENT 

GRAND TOTAL 37,290,130.95$  800.5    150        106,545,904.68$   75,927,618.74$  
U Call I Haul, LLC 2/14/2024 Bismarck 387,000.00$                               2.00                  979,682.00$                                    592,682.00$                               
Old Ten Bar & Grill 1/17/2024 Bismarck 1,381,000.00$                            27.00                3,356,702.00$                                 1,975,702.00$                            
Bis-Man Chiropractic 12/28/2023 Bismarck 33,200.00$                                 664,000.00$                                    630,800.00$                               
Old Ten Bar & Grill 12/10/2023 Bismarck 52,964.95$                                 52,964.95$                                      -$                                            
DK Orthodontics 10/11/2023 Bismarck 1,156,000.00$                            7.00                  2,808,000.00$                                 1,652,000.00$                            
Brick Oven Bakery 9/27/2023 Bismarck 103,000.00$                               20.00                330,000.00$                                    227,000.00$                               
Pro Marine 8/30/2023 Bismarck 242,530.00$                               242,530.00$                                    
Pro Marine 8/30/2023 Bismarck 86,901.34$                                 7.00                  2,236,591.54$                                 2,149,690.20$                            
The One Stop Diesel Stop 7/25/2023 Lincoln 46,352.18$                                 3.00                  1,252,471.97$                                 1,206,119.79$                            
DK Orthodontics 6/1/2023 Bismarck 35,195.51$                                 35,195.51$                                      -$                                            
U Call I Haul, LLC 6/1/2023 Bismarck 20,582.53$                                 20,582.53$                                      -$                                            
Rocks and Blocks Landscaping 03/15/2023 Bismarck 793,000.00$                               11.00                1,925,000.00$                                 1,132,000.00$                            
Green Food 2 Go, Inc. 11/30/2022 Bismarck 35,019.71$                                 14.00                1,185,461.71$                                 1,150,442.00$                            
Dakota Concepts, LLC 09/02/2022 Bismarck 10,439.30$                                 6.00                  458,326.52$                                    447,887.22$                               
2 Vets Moving 2022 Bismarck 20,401.72$                                 1,224,768.72$                                 1,204,367.00$                            
Bisman Food Coop 2022 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 50,000.00$                                      -$                                            
CK Properties 2022 Bismarck 105,698.24$                               105,698.24$                                    -$                                            
Culvers of Bismarck 2022 Bismarck 59,622.03$                                 
Dream Center of Bismarck 2022 Bismarck 72,770.30$                                 2,907,494.95$                                 2,834,724.65$                            
Envision Pools and Outdoor Living 2022 Bismarck 218,875.00$                               4.00                  515,000.00$                                    296,125.00$                               
Envision Pools and Outdoor Living 2022 Bismarck 212,500.00$                               500,000.00$                                    287,500.00$                               
Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation 2022 Bismarck 36,544.48$                                 68.00                1,685,404.48$                                 1,648,860.00$                            
Rocks and Blocks 2022 Bismarck 250,000.00$                               
Rocks and Blocks 2022 Bismarck 236,000.00$                               1,620,000.00$                                 1,134,000.00$                            
Abra Auto Body & Glass 2021 Bismarck 659,000.00$                               4.00                  1,620,800.00$                                 961,800.00$                               
Culvers of Bismarck 2021 Bismarck 940,000.00$                               10.00                3,824,707.00$                                 2,884,707.00$                            
Gratitude, LLC 2021 Bismarck 18,912.71$                                 19.00                813,156.71$                                    794,244.00$                               
PAWZ Enrichment Center 2021 Bismarck 277,000.00$                               3.00                  775,000.00$                                    498,000.00$                               
The Hair Academy 2021 Bismarck 14,910.03$                                 16.00                720,424.03$                                    705,514.00$                               
Circle C Enterprises 2020 Baldwin 387,000.00$                               13.00                935,050.00$                                    548,050.00$                               
Embrace Wellness 2020 Bismarck 277,000.00$                               6.00                  763,300.00$                                    486,300.00$                               
Embrace Wellness Vitality Wellness Group LLC 2020 Bismark 14,753.89$                                 14,753.89$                                      -$                                            
Keys Please Properties LLC 2020 Bismarck 35,174.54$                                 35,174.54$                                      -$                                            
Maximum Detailing & Fabrication 2020 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 4.00                  50,000.00$                                      -$                                            
NAPA Auto Parts 2020 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 5.00                  50,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Noodle Zip 2020 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 10.00                50,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Parkway Property Management 2020 Bismarck 223,000.00$                               6.00                  535,000.00$                                    312,000.00$                               
Solid Rock Music 2020 Bismarck 120,000.00$                               3.00                  325,500.00$                                    205,500.00$                               
Solid Rock Music 2020 Bismarck 6,895.57$                                   2.00                  6,895.57$                                        -$                                            
Wing Chemical Feed Building 2020 Wing 107,595.00$                               405,500.00$                                    297,905.00$                               
Arnold, Steven & Michele 2019 Bismarck 15,400.00$                                 18.00                672,988.00$                                    657,588.00$                               
DLAH Properties 2019 Bismarck 107,560.00$                               15.00                4,342,709.00$                                 4,235,149.00$                            
Gillund, Christopher & Ben 2019 Bismarck 45,000.00$                                 7.00                  90,000.00$                                      45,000.00$                                 
JB  Lozensky Properties LLP 2019 Bismarck 39,626.79$                                 605,000.00$                                    565,373.21$                               
Rocks and Blocks 2019 Bismarck 306,000.00$                               5.00                  842,750.00$                                    536,750.00$                               
Solid Rock Music 2019 Bismarck 35,000.00$                                 2.00                  100,000.00$                                    65,000.00$                                 
Solid Rock Music 2019 Bismarck 2,768.50$                                   2,768.50$                                        -$                                            
Solid Rock Music Markel, Matthew and Carlee 2019 Bismarck 113,925.00$                               -$                                                -$                                            
Centennial Collision and Repair 2018 Bismarck 441,000.00$                               7.00                  1,225,102.28$                                 784,102.28$                               
Gieser Utility Contracting 2018 Menoken 279,000.00$                               1.00                  675,000.00$                                    396,000.00$                               
Laughing Sun Brewing Company 2018 Bismarck 103,336.92$                               6.00                  1,153,336.92$                                 1,050,000.00$                            
North Dakota Safety Council 2018 Bismarck 106,014.50$                               106,014.50$                                    -$                                            
Buffalo Wings & Rings 2017 Bismarck 1,392,000.00$                            22.00                3,398,160.96$                                 2,006,160.96$                            
Clouse Veer Daycare Rental 2017 Bismarck 20,900.00$                                 14.00                465,900.00$                                    445,000.00$                               
Glance Spa & Salon, Inc, 2017 Bismarck 299,000.00$                               22.00                725,000.00$                                    426,000.00$                               
Kinderkidz Learning Center 2017 Bismarck 330,000.00$                               23.00                801,301.88$                                    471,301.88$                               
Bisman Food Coop 2016 Bismarck 300,000.00$                               30.00                2,577,000.00$                                 2,277,000.00$                            
Glance Spa & Salon, Inc, 2016 Bismarck 290,000.00$                               
Greenlight Systems, LLC 2016 Bismarck 322,000.00$                               5.00                  777,695.68$                                    455,695.68$                               
Juniper, LLC 2016 Bismarck 777,000.00$                               15.00                1,884,000.00$                                 1,107,000.00$                            
Lucky Ducks 2016 Bismarck 249,000.00$                               656,880.00$                                    407,880.00$                               
Lucky Ducks ND, LLC 2016 Bismarck 1,116,000.00$                            18.00                2,723,359.78$                                 1,607,359.78$                            
MS Ops, Inc. 2016 Bismarck 300,000.00$                               35.00                4,372,750.00$                                 4,072,750.00$                            
Spaces Inc. 2016 Bismarck 281,000.00$                               3.00                  676,000.00$                                    395,000.00$                               
Towing & Recovery Specialists, Inc. 2016 Bismarck 1,580,000.00$                            5.00                  5,008,734.07$                                 3,428,734.07$                            
Advanced Fleet Services 2015 Bismarck 837,000.00$                               12.00                2,030,000.00$                                 1,193,000.00$                            
Advanced Fleet Services 2015 Bismarck 110,383.60$                               
Humpback Sally's 2015 Bismarck 987,000.00$                               17.00                2,738,806.00$                                 1,751,806.00$                            
Juniper, LLC NodMor LLC / Juniper Archeological 2015 Bismarck 199,053.60$                               -$                                                -$                                            
Little Einsteins 2015 Bismarck 497,000.00$                               31.00                1,375,096.00$                                 878,096.00$                               
Little Einsteins 2015 Bismarck 7,046.55$                                   
Lucky Ducks 2015 Bismarck 1,000,000.00$                            
Affinity Global (Levinson) 2014 Bismarck 1,131,000.00$                            17.00                2,746,636.08$                                 1,615,636.08$                            
Affinity Global Patricia Levinson and Brent Levinso 2014 Bismarck 982,025.89$                               
Affinity Global Patricia Levinson and Brent Levinso 2014 Bismarck 425,000.00$                               4,693,482.00$                                 4,268,482.00$                            
B&N Ralph, LLC 2014 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 19.00                249,722.00$                                    199,722.00$                               
Depot Properties 2014 Bismarck 1,030,000.00$                            16.00                2,500,000.00$                                 1,470,000.00$                            
Depot Properties, LLC 2014 Bismarck 1,000,000.00$                            -$                                                -$                                            
EBSIA - Once upon a child 2014 Bismarck 486,000.00$                               16.00                1,176,715.00$                                 690,715.00$                               
EBSIA, LLC 2014 Bismarck 470,686.34$                               -$                                                -$                                            
Juniper, LLC NodMor LLC / Juniper Archeological 2014 Bismarck 554,546.40$                               -$                                                -$                                            
Little Einsteins 2014 Bismarck 474,237.20$                               
Little Einsteins 2014 Bismarck 29,475.00$                                 29,475.00$                                      
Lucky Ducks 2014 Bismarck 207,000.00$                               30.00                567,721.00$                                    360,721.00$                               
Lucky Ducks 2014 Bismarck 198,702.00$                               
Northland Concrete 2014 Bismarck 75,000.00$                                 1.00                  150,000.00$                                    75,000.00$                                 
Padilla, Chris & Gina 2014 Bismarck 147,000.00$                               1.00                  400,000.00$                                    253,000.00$                               
Shri Properties, LLC dba Super 8 (1) 2014 Bismarck 510,000.00$                               -$                                                
Wing Theatre 2014 Wing 20,000.00$                                 1.00                  50,609.00$                                      30,609.00$                                 
Advanced Fleet Services Terrence and Diane Stec 2013 Bismarck 701,616.40$                               
Annex 208, Corp 2013 Bismarck 10,000.00$                                 1.00                  33,000.00$                                      23,000.00$                                 
Nardello's LLP 2013 Bismarck 50,000.00$                                 5.00                  200,000.00$                                    150,000.00$                               
ND Boutiques dba Right on Broadway 2013 Bismarck 20,000.00$                                 1.00                  65,000.00$                                      45,000.00$                                 
Northland Concrete 2013 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 50,000.00$                                      25,000.00$                                 
Shri Properties, LLC dba Super 8 2013 Bismarck 1,000,000.00$                            20.00                5,100,000.00$                                 4,100,000.00$                            
Top Gun Powerwashing 2013 Lincoln 120,000.00$                               5.00                  330,000.00$                                    210,000.00$                               
Lincoln Lagoon Repairs 2013 Lincoln 50,000.00$                                 50,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Capitol Avenue Business Center 2012 Bismarck 388,000.00$                               8.00                  1,010,000.00$                                 622,000.00$                               
Zoeller, Larine 2012 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  5,000.00$                                        -$                                            

LEWIS AND CLARK REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 



Backhaus, Greg 2011 Menoken 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  22,000.00$                                      17,000.00$                                 
Nodak Industrial Chemical, LLC 2011 Menoken 21,000.00$                                 1.00                  50,315.00$                                      29,315.00$                                 
Willow Creek Lawn and Landscaping 2011 120,000.00$                               6.00                  456,000.00$                                    336,000.00$                               
American Machine and Engineering 2010 40,000.00$                                 3.00                  230,000.00$                                    190,000.00$                               
Robi's Repair, Inc. 2009 Wilton 57,000.00$                                 3.00                  475,625.00$                                    418,625.00$                               
Robi's Repair, Inc. 2009 Wilton 18,000.00$                                 18,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Saner, Angelia dba Angelia's Hands 2009 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  15,000.00$                                      10,000.00$                                 
Wing LI Apartments Rehabilitation 2009 Wing 51,894.00$                                 8                          61,894.00$                                      10,000.00$                                 
Engessor, Robert dba Mr. Xterior 2008 Bismarck 1,500.00$                                   3,000.00$                                        1,500.00$                                   
Alpha Cycles 2006 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  5,000.00$                                        -$                                            
Wing Water Reservoir 2006 Wing 2,924.00$                                   3,424.00$                                        500.00$                                      
Dakota Cranes 2005 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  63,000.00$                                      58,000.00$                                 
Northern Plains Commerce Center 2005 Bismarck 106,000.00$                               1,000,000.00$                                 894,000.00$                               
Moffit ADA 2005 Moffit 8,256.00$                                   8,756.00$                                        500.00$                                      
Wing Water Tower 2005 Wing 6,000.00$                                   6,500.00$                                        500.00$                                      
Bismarck State College 2004 Bismarck 150,000.00$                               1,500,000.00$                                 1,350,000.00$                            
Mr. Xterior Mobile Cleaning Service 2003 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   18,000.00$                                      13,000.00$                                 
Lincoln Housing Rehab 2003 Lincoln 115,000.00$                               12                        115,350.00$                                    350.00$                                      
Lincoln Strategic Plan 2003 Lincoln 9,500.00$                                   10,000.00$                                      500.00$                                      
Lincoln Water Reservoir 2003 Lincoln 66,000.00$                                 382,000.00$                                    316,000.00$                               
Mr. Exterior 2002 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  -                       5,000.00$                                        -$                                            
Lincoln Rehab 2002 Lincoln 115,000.00$                               -                    14                        115,350.00$                                    350.00$                                      
UTTC Multi-Purpose 2001 Bismarck 911,000.00$                               1,097,774.00$                                 186,774.00$                               
Mr. Exterior 2000 Bismarck 2,200.00$                                   5,000.00$                                        2,800.00$                                   
Bismarck Canvas Company 1999 Menoken 71,500.00$                                 3.00                  185,000.00$                                    113,500.00$                               
Food Processing-BMDA 1999 Bismarck 3,000.00$                                   31,000.00$                                      28,000.00$                                 
Child Object 1998 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   2,500.00$                                        1,500.00$                                   
Pond Doctor 1998 Bismarck 1,174.00$                                   4,696.00$                                        3,522.00$                                   
Schultz Marketing 1998 Bismarck 2,500.00$                                   75,000.00$                                      72,500.00$                                 
UTTC Housing Rehab 1998 Bismarck 86,285.23$                                 20                        86,285.23$                                      -$                                            
Lagoon Improvements 1998 Wing 19,223.00$                                 23,223.00$                                      4,000.00$                                   
UTTC Utilities 1998 Bismarck 35,000.00$                                 70,000.00$                                      35,000.00$                                 
UTTC Utilities 1998 Bismarck 237,090.00$                               237,090.00$                                    -$                                            
Aleviator 1997 Bismarck 3,000.00$                                   9,000.00$                                        6,000.00$                                   
DCI 1997 Bismarck 1,290.00$                                   3,000.00$                                        1,710.00$                                   
Fence Post Driver 1997 Bismarck 1,250.00$                                   2,500.00$                                        1,250.00$                                   
K & B Fencing 1997 Bismarck 6,600.00$                                   6,600.00$                                        -$                                            
Snowblow Attachment 1997 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   2,500.00$                                        1,500.00$                                   
Stilworks 1997 Lincoln 23,000.00$                                 1.00                  25,300.00$                                      2,300.00$                                   
UTTC Utilities 1997 Bismarck 97,200.00$                                 97,200.00$                                      -$                                            
UTTC Utilities 1997 Bismarck 196,800.00$                               196,800.00$                                    -$                                            
Wing Water 1997 Wing 34,870.00$                                 43,870.00$                                      9,000.00$                                   
Aberwoods 1996 Bismarck 2,500.00$                                   5,666.00$                                        3,166.00$                                   
Affordable Windows 1996 Bismarck 15,000.00$                                 2.00                  15,000.00$                                      -$                                            
All Seasons Insulation 1996 Bismarck 7,500.00$                                   3.00                  7,500.00$                                        -$                                            
Coin Dispenser 1996 Bismarck 1,786.00$                                   3,572.00$                                        1,786.00$                                   
Internet Marketing 1996 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   2,000.00$                                        1,000.00$                                   
J.T. Fire 1996 Lincoln 2,396.00$                                   1.00                  2,396.00$                                        -$                                            
K & B Fencing 1996 Bismarck 12,000.00$                                 3.00                  12,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Kids N More 1996 Bismarck 15,000.00$                                 2.00                  15,000.00$                                      -$                                            
LXL 1996 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   1.00                  5,000.00$                                        -$                                            
Northland Fencing 1996 Bismarck 20,500.00$                                 4.00                  20,500.00$                                      -$                                            
Stitchery & Such 1996 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 2.00                  60,000.00$                                      35,000.00$                                 
UTTC Utilities 1996 Bismarck 160,000.00$                               1,066,130.00$                                 906,130.00$                               
UTTC Utilities 1996 Bismarck 539,000.00$                               539,000.00$                                    -$                                            
UTTC Utilities 1996 Bismarck 351,800.00$                               351,800.00$                                    -$                                            
Aberwoods 1995 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 2.00                  25,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Chiefs Choice 1995 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 1.00                  25,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Dakota Fire Station 1995 Bismarck 22,590.00$                                 3.00                  22,590.00$                                      -$                                            
Eagle Systems 1995 Bismarck 2,472.00$                                   16,692.00$                                      14,220.00$                                 
Enchanted Occasions 1995 Lincoln 11,700.00$                                 1.00                  13,000.00$                                      1,300.00$                                   
JS Endeavors 1995 Bismarck 1,645.00$                                   3,290.00$                                        1,645.00$                                   
Sound Dynamics 1995 Bismarck 1,500.00$                                   3,000.00$                                        1,500.00$                                   
Specialty Foods I 1995 Bismarck 250.00$                                      250.00$                                           -$                                            
Spin Tackle Boxes 1995 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   2,165.00$                                        1,165.00$                                   
Thinking Strategies 1995 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   3,689.00$                                        2,689.00$                                   
Housing Rehab 1995 Wing 115,000.00$                               12                        115,500.00$                                    500.00$                                      
Bismarck Trailers 1995 Bismarck 18,720.00$                                 31,200.00$                                      12,480.00$                                 
Fire Hall 1995 Sterling 7,000.00$                                   10,697.00$                                      3,697.00$                                   
Fire Hall 1995 Sterling 999.00$                                      999.00$                                           -$                                            
Lincoln - Lagoon 1995 Lincoln 139,000.00$                               322,609.35$                                    183,609.35$                               
Dakota Plastics 1994 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 2.00                  25,000.00$                                      -$                                            
DCI 1994 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 4.00                  25,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Horseshoe Western 1994 Bismarck 25,000.00$                                 2.00                  25,000.00$                                      -$                                            
J. T. Fire 1994 Lincoln 8,500.00$                                   1.00                  8,500.00$                                        -$                                            
Jane Marie 1994 Bismarck 14,500.00$                                 1.50                  25,000.00$                                      10,500.00$                                 
Let's Dance 1994 Bismarck 6,500.00$                                   1.00                  6,500.00$                                        -$                                            
LXL 1994 Bismarck 8,500.00$                                   2.00                  8,500.00$                                        -$                                            
Missouri Valley Calibr. 1994 Bismarck 1,380.00$                                   2,760.00$                                        1,380.00$                                   
NCA Study 1994 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   10,238.00$                                      5,238.00$                                   
Paper Study 1994 4,709.00$                                   18,164.00$                                      13,455.00$                                 
Stebbon Co. 1994 Bismarck 15,000.00$                                 1.00                  15,000.00$                                      -$                                            
UTTC Rehab. 1994 Bismarck 90,581.00$                                 47                        101,309.00$                                    10,728.00$                                 
Lincoln CIP 1994 Lincoln 3,000.00$                                   3,300.00$                                        300.00$                                      
Lincoln Sewer 1994 Lincoln 134,520.00$                               135,000.00$                                    480.00$                                      
Lincoln Water 1994 Lincoln 119,300.00$                               212,720.59$                                    93,420.59$                                 
UTTC ADA 1994 Bismarck 41,627.00$                                 127,274.00$                                    85,647.00$                                 
Wing Fire Hall 1994 Wing 11,572.00$                                 11,572.00$                                      -$                                            
Ad Med 1993 Bismarck 20,000.00$                                 40,000.00$                                      20,000.00$                                 
ASAP 1993 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   3.00                  10,152.00$                                      9,152.00$                                   
Carlisle Cereal 1993 Bismarck 1,722.00$                                   3,444.00$                                        1,722.00$                                   
Dakota Creations 1993 Bismarck 1,876.00$                                   3.00                  3,501.00$                                        1,625.00$                                   
Library 1993 Bismarck 10,000.00$                                 105,728.00$                                    95,728.00$                                 
Bis-Man Transit 1993 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   160,000.00$                                    155,000.00$                               
Sterling Fire Hall 1993 Sterling 26,950.00$                                 48,805.00$                                      21,855.00$                                 
UTTC ADA 1993 Bismarck 80,000.00$                                 80,000.00$                                      -$                                            
Wing Fire Hall 1993 Wing 32,313.00$                                 68,505.00$                                      36,192.00$                                 
ADS 1992 Bismarck 1,000.00$                                   2,034.00$                                        1,034.00$                                   
Dakota Creations 1992 Bismarck 3,124.00$                                   3,125.00$                                        1.00$                                          
Woodcraft 1992 Bismarck 3,149.00$                                   11,179.00$                                      8,030.00$                                   
UTTC Housing 1991 Bismarck 560,000.00$                               16                        560,000.00$                                    -$                                            
B-M Transit 1991 Bismarck 5,750.00$                                   5,750.00$                                        -$                                            
Medical Target 1990 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   65,000.00$                                      60,000.00$                                 
NDMBMA 1990 Bismarck 140,000.00$                               8.00                  405,000.00$                                    265,000.00$                               
SynOps 90 1990 Bismarck 5,000.00$                                   -                    75,000.00$                                      70,000.00$                                 
UTTC Rehab 1990 Bismarck 138,000.00$                               21                        153,196.00$                                    15,196.00$                                 



BORROWER Project Name Units Funds Lent Leverage TOTAL PROJECT City County
Date Closed/ 

Status Rate
Terms 

months Fund Use of Funds LI %

Independence Pt. Pride Independence Pt. 24 150,000.00$         3,650,563.00$        3,800,563.00$        Bismarck Burleigh 4/26/2013 3.50% 24 DREAM II New Construction 100
Sierra Court LLP Sierra Court 40 250,000.00$         7,233,989.00$        7,483,989.00$        Bismarck Burleigh 4/13/2015 4.00% 7 NR New Construction 100
Ruth Meiers Hospitality House Ruth Meiers Hospitality House 45 269,230.76$         10,483,386.24$      10,752,617.00$      Bismarck Burleigh 5/26/2016 1.15% 78 Acquisition/Rehabilitation 100
100 West Main Limited Partnership 100 West Main 30 50,000.00$           6,463,176.00$        6,513,176.00$        Bismarck Burleigh 10/11/2018 3.00% 216 New Construction 100
Century Cottages, LLLP Century Cottages 35 455,000.00$         8,218,679.47$        8,673,679.47$        Bismarck Burleigh 7/11/2019 7.00% NR New Construction 100
Century Cottages, LLLP Century Cottages 102,215.39$         -$                        -$                        Bismarck Burleigh 12/13/2021 New Construction
Century Cottages, LLLP Century Cottages 32,399.08$           -$                        -$                        Bismarck Burleigh 12/21/2021 New Construction
CWND Bismarck, LLLP Boulevard Apartments 120 2,526,000.00$      15,276,715.00$      18,669,581.00$      Bismarck Burleigh 11/17/2020 Acquisition/Rehabilitation 100
CWND Bismarck, LLLP Boulevard Apartments 866,866.00$         -$                        -$                        Bismarck Burleigh 11/17/2020 Acquisition
Century Baptist Church 106,376.96$         -$                        106,376.96$           Bismarck Burleigh 08/12/2021 Acquisition
630 Main Development LLC 630 Main 52 235,853.08$         9,560,000.00$        9,795,853.08$        Bismarck Burleigh 9/28/2021 Acquisition/Rehabilitation 20
Century View Apartments, LLLP Century View Apartments 40 678,000.00$         11,269,124.00$      11,947,124.00$      Bismarck Burleigh 05/05/2023 New Construction 80
CWND MSAUW, LLLP United Way Center for Opportunity 400,000.00$         1,600,000.00$        2,000,000.00$        Bismarck Burleigh 12/10/2020 Acquisition/Rehabilitation
TOTALS 386 6,121,941.27$      73,755,632.71$      79,742,959.51$      

*Bold Denotes General/Co-General Partner/Owned
Highlighted Denotes Developer/Co-Developer

Lewis & Clark Development Group Multifamily Projects



CHAPTER 54-40.1
REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

54-40.1-01. Legislative findings and purpose.
The legislative assembly finds that the citizens of the state have a fundamental interest in 

the orderly development of the state and its resources. This finding recognizes the fact that the 
mobility of the population, changes in economic forces, and governmental mandates within and 
without the state present problems that cannot always be met by individual counties or cities 
and that local government planning and development efforts can be strengthened when aided 
by studies, planning, and implementation of both a statewide and regional character.

The  legislative  assembly  further  finds  that  the  state  has  a  positive  interest  in  the 
establishment,  preparation,  and  maintenance  of  a  long-term,  continuing,  comprehensive 
planning and development process for the physical, social, and economic development of the 
state and each of its regions to serve as a guide for activities of state and local governmental 
units.

It is the purpose of this chapter to establish a consistent, comprehensive statewide policy 
for planning, economic development, program operations, coordination, and related cooperative 
activities of state and local governmental units and to enhance the ability of and opportunity for 
local  governmental  units  to  resolve  issues  and  problems  transcending  their  individual 
boundaries. In furtherance of this purpose, the legislative assembly finds that the governor is 
required to assure orderly and harmonious coordination of state and local plans and programs 
with federal, state, and regional planning and programming.

54-40.1-02. Definitions.
In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires:
1. "City" means any city incorporated under the laws of this state.
2. "Governing body" means the city council or the board of city commissioners or the 

board of county commissioners.
3. "Industry" includes agriculture and business.
4. "Member-at-large" means a person who represents the general citizenry of the county.
5. "Minority group" means any identifiable group of people, regardless of numerical size, 

whose  members  are  denied  or  limited  in  employment,  education,  or  training 
opportunities  because  of  sex,  race,  creed,  color,  religion,  national  origin,  or  low 
income.

6. "Organized  local  development  corporation"  means  any  group  organized  for  the 
purpose of promoting economic development which has filed for incorporation as such 
with the secretary of state.

7. "Region" means the area delineated by executive order of the governor.
8. "Regional comprehensive plan" means a long-range guide for the economic, physical, 

and social  development of a region which identifies regional goals,  objectives,  and 
opportunities and embodies the policies of the regional council.

9. "Regional council"  means the council for comprehensive planning and development 
established in each region pursuant to this chapter.

10. "Units of general local government" means cities, counties, and organized townships.

54-40.1-03. Regional council - Membership.
1. Total membership on a regional council must be determined by the participating units 

of general local government, subject to the following minimum criteria of membership:
a. A majority of the full regional council membership must be composed of existing 

elected city officials and county commissioners. Selection of these members must 
be by their respective governing bodies.

b. One member of the regional council  may represent  identifiable and organized 
minority groups existing in the region. Selection of the member may be made by 
the minority groups upon invitation from the regional council.

Page No. 1

BrentEkstrom
Highlight



c. One soil conservation district supervisor from each county must be appointed to 
the regional council to represent the agricultural and natural resource interests of 
the region. The appointment of the soil conservation district supervisor must be 
made  by  the  respective  boards  of  soil  conservation  districts.  If  any  county 
contains more than one soil conservation district, either in whole or in part, the 
concerned boards shall meet and jointly agree upon a single appointment to the 
regional council.

d. One or more members of the regional council, selected by the local development 
corporations,  shall  represent  the  organized  local  development  corporations 
existing in the region.

e. The  chairman  of  the  regional  employment  training  council  or  the  chairman's 
designee must be appointed to the regional council.

f. An alternate must be selected for each regular member of the regional council in 
the same manner as the regular member is selected. The alternate member is to 
serve on the regional council when the regular member is absent and shall enjoy 
the same responsibilities and privileges as a regular member enjoys.

2. The term of office of each member of the regional council must be as determined by 
the regional council and specified in its agreements, rules, or procedures. However, if 
a person is a member of the regional council as the result of being a member of the 
governing body of a city or a county, that person's term on the regional council expires 
at the same time that person's term of public office expires and another person must 
be appointed to the regional council in the same manner as the selection was made 
for the member whose term expires.

3. Special or standing committees may be appointed to assist and advise the regional 
council. Members of special or standing committees must be appointed by the regional 
council. Membership on special or standing committees is not limited to the members 
of the regional council.

4. The regional council may elect an executive board from the members of the regional 
council. The executive board shall perform the administrative duties prescribed in the 
agreements, rules, or procedures of the regional council.

5. The regional council shall determine the rate at which expenses of regional council 
members  and  members  of  any  special  or  standing  committees  must  be  paid  for 
expenses incurred in attending meetings of the regional council and the committees 
and in the performance of their official duties, but the amounts may not exceed the 
amounts provided by law for state officers.

54-40.1-04. Regional council - Powers and duties.
A regional council shall:
1. Adopt agreements, rules, or procedures as may be necessary to effectuate planning 

and development in the region.
2. Coordinate  planning  and development  within  the  region for  all  matters  of  regional 

concern  as  determined  by  the  regional  council,  including  land  use,  social  and 
economic  planning,  economic  development,  transportation,  health,  environmental 
quality,  water  and  sewerage,  solid  waste,  flood  relief,  parks  and  open  spaces, 
hospitals, and public buildings.

3. Participate with other public agencies and private organizations in regard to research 
for planning activities relevant to the region.

4. For  the  purpose  of  coordination,  work  with  state  departments,  agencies,  and 
institutions in reviewing and commenting on all plans and federal aid applications as to 
their impact on the region.

5. Develop guidelines for the coordination of land use plans and ordinances within the 
region.

6. Prepare a regional comprehensive plan and upon the preparation of such a plan or 
any phase, amendment, revision, extension, addition, functional part, or part thereof, 
file such plan, phase, functional part, amendment, revision, extension, addition, or part 

Page No. 2



thereof with the office, all local planning agencies within the region, and other planning 
agencies in adjoining areas.

7. Develop an annual budget for operations during a fiscal year.
8. Receive and expend federal, state, and local funds, and contract for services with units 

of general local government and private individuals and organizations, consistent with 
the scope and objectives of planning and development functions.

9. Upon availability of funds, hire an executive director who must be given full control 
over the staff  of  the regional  council.  The executive director  shall  act  as a liaison 
between the regional council and the staff of the regional council and shall advise and 
assist the regional council in the selection of staff.

10. Provide technical assistance for primary sector business development by leveraging 
local  funds  to  assist  in  product  development,  product  testing,  business  plan 
development,  feasibility  studies,  gaining  patent  protection,  legal  services,  market 
strategy development, and other needs to stimulate business development.

11. Host  business outreach forums to stimulate entrepreneurship and interchange with 
potential investment and forums on other matters of importance to the local area.

12. Upon request, facilitate the financing of local economic development activities, such as 
interest buydown programs and local revolving loan fund programs, without regard to 
the fiscal source.

13. Act  as  a  regional  development  corporation  as  provided  by  the  individual  regional 
council's bylaws.

14. Have authority to purchase, own, and manage real property for the purpose of the 
business incubator and regional council administrative functions.

54-40.1-05. Reports.
Each regional council shall prepare an annual report within one hundred twenty days after 

the  end  of  each  fiscal  year.  The  regional  council  shall  submit  copies  of  the  report  to  the 
participating units of general local government, to the governor or the governor's designee, and 
to members of the legislative assembly in each region. To the extent practicable, the report must 
include projects completed or in progress and sources of funding.

54-40.1-06. Dissolution of regional council.
A regional council may be dissolved as prescribed in the agreements, rules, or procedures 

of the regional council. Upon dissolution, all properties of the regional council will be converted 
to  cash  or  evaluated  as  to  worth  and  divided  among  participating  units  of  general  local 
government in proportion to the amount of their financial participation.

Page No. 3



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 



BURLEIGH - MORTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

DETENTION REPORT April 2024 

1. March Housing Report: 
 

a. Average Daily Population (ADP) 247 
 

b. Total Bookings:  615 or 20 per day average. 
 

 
2. Breakdown of Inmate Days: 

 
a. Bismarck inmate days:  

653 nights  21 per night   $48,938 billed 

b. Mandan inmate days: 

                  22 nights  1 per night  $1,613 billed 

c. U.S. Marshall/Bureau of Prisons: 

1,195 nights  39 per night   $137,425 billed 

d. Others (Counties/Cities): 

362 nights  12 per night  $22,090 billed 

e. Burleigh/ Morton Average per night: 

      6,213 nights  200 per night 

 

3. Total billed :   $209,812  Year:  $591,337 
 
 

4. Burleigh County alternatives to jail program (24/7Program): 265 Participants 
- 73 on the drug patch.  
- 105 on the ankle bracelet. 
- 60 on twice a day breath tests.  
- 27 people testing in other counties. 
-   0 Remote Breath Testing 
 



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 8 



Addenda item for April 15, 2024 Meeting 
 
Subject: Bismarck Burleigh Public Health 
 
Action Requested: None 
 
Review attached documents regarding the services that are required as well as the additional services 
provided by Public Health. We will also discuss how each is funded.  
  
 
 



CHAPTER 23-35
PUBLIC HEALTH UNITS

23-35-01. Definitions.
As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:
1. "Board of health" means a district, county, city, or tribal board of health.
2. "Department" means the department of health and human services.
3. "Governing  body"  means,  as  applicable,  a  city  commission,  city  council,  board  of 

county commissioners, joint board of county commissioners, or tribal council.
4. "Health district" means an entity formed under section 23-35-04 or 23-35-05.
5. "Joint board of county commissioners" means the boards of county commissioners of 

two or more counties acting together in joint session.
6. "Local health officer" means the health officer of a public health unit.
7. "Public health department" means a city, county, or tribal health department formed 

under this chapter.
8. "Public health unit" means the local organization formed under this chapter to provide 

public health services in a city, county, or designated multicounty or city-county area, 
or Indian reservation. The term includes a city public health department, county public 
health department, tribal health department, and a health district.

23-35-02. Public health units - Core functions.
1. All land in the state must be in a public health unit.
2. At a minimum, a public health unit shall provide the following core functions:

a. Communicable disease control, which must include:
(1) Conducting  of  disease  surveillance  for  the  purpose  of  preventing  and 

controlling communicable disease, with assistance from the department.
(2) Assurance  of  the  availability  of  community-based  programs  to  provide 

communicable disease prevention and control services.
(3) Recognition, identification, and response to a communicable disease event, 

in collaboration with the department.
b. Chronic disease and injury prevention, which must include conducting programs 

to reduce the burden of chronic disease and injury through policy, system, and 
environmental change approach; prevention screening; and education.

c. Environmental public health, which must include:
(1) Prevention of  environmental  hazards by the provision  of  information  and 

education to facility operators and managers and to community members.
(2) Assurance of the availability of environmental health services to prevent and 

respond to community and residential environmental hazards.
d. Maternal, child, and family health, which must include:

(1) Assessment and monitoring of maternal and child health status to identify 
and address problems.

(2) Implementation of programs to promote the health of women, children, and 
youth, and their families, through policy, system, and environmental change 
approaches; prevention screenings; and education.

e. Access to clinical care, which must include:
(1) Collaboration with health care system partners to foster access to clinical 

care.
(2) Facilitation of linkages and referrals for appropriate clinical care, services, 

and resources.

23-35-02.1. Tribal health units.
An Indian nation that occupies a reservation the external boundaries of which border more 

than four counties may form a health district or public health department as provided in this 
chapter. A tribal public health unit and bordering public health units shall collaborate regarding 
the provision of public health services. If an individual who is not an enrolled member of an 

Page No. 1



Indian tribe of the Indian reservation that forms a tribal public health unit is a party to a civil 
action in which the tribal public health unit is also a party, that individual may bring the action in 
or move the action to tribal court or district court.

23-35-02.2. Public health units to adopt onsite wastewater recycling treatment guide.
Each public  health  unit  shall  adopt  the  statewide technical  guide for  onsite  wastewater 

recycling treatment technologies and sewage distribution technologies established by the onsite 
wastewater recycling technical committee.

23-35-02.3. Onsite wastewater recycling technical committee - Appointment - Duties.
1. The onsite wastewater recycling technical committee consists of:

a. Three representatives from local public health units appointed by the governor 
from a list of names forwarded by local public health units;

b. Four individuals who must be installers appointed by the governor. The governor 
shall  appoint  the individuals from a list  of  names forwarded by a professional 
onsite wastewater recycling association. For purposes of this section, an installer 
means  an  individual  licensed  by  a  local  public  health  unit  to  install  onsite 
wastewater sewage treatment systems; and

c. One  individual  who  must  be  a  licensed  environmental  health  practitioner 
appointed by the governor from a list of names forwarded by a professional onsite 
wastewater recycling association.

2. The director of the department of environmental quality or the director's designee shall 
provide input at the request of the committee.

3. The  terms  of  the  committee  members  are  for  four  years,  and  members  may  be 
reappointed.

4. The committee shall:
a. Meet at the call of at least three of the members.
b. Create  a  statewide  technical  guide  for  onsite  wastewater  recycling  treatment 

technologies and sewage distribution technologies.
c. Recommend standards and procedures for issuing an installer license.
d. Recommend continuing education requirements for installer license renewal.
e. Recommend reasonable fees for issuing or renewing an installer license.

23-35-03. Boards of health.
1. The department shall advise boards of health.
2. A city's, county's,  or  tribe's governing  body may establish  a  public  health  unit  by 

creating  and  appointing  a  board  of  health,  which  in  the  case  of  a  city,  may  be 
composed of the city's governing body, or in the case of a tribe, may be composed of 
the  tribal  council  or  governing  body.  A board  of  health  must  have  at  least  five 
members.
a. In the case of a board of health created by a joint board of county commissioners, 

each county in the health district must have at least one representative on the 
board; each county of over fifteen thousand population must have an additional 
representative  for  each  fifteen  thousand  population  or  major  fraction  of  that 
number; and in a health district of fewer than five counties, each county must 
have at least one representative on the district board of health, and the additional 
representatives selected to constitute the minimum five-member board must be 
equitably apportioned among the counties on a population basis.

b. In the case of a joint city-county health district composed of only one county and 
having at  least  one city  over  fifteen thousand  population,  each  city  having  a 
population over fifteen thousand must have a representative on the district board 
of health for each fifteen thousand population or major fraction of that number, 
and the remaining population of the county, exclusive of the populations of cities 
with more than fifteen thousand each, must have a representative on the district 
board  of  health  for  each fifteen thousand population  or  major  fraction  of  that 

Page No. 2



number, or at least one member if the remaining population is less than fifteen 
thousand.

3. The initial members of any board of health appointed by a governing body must be 
appointed for terms as follows: at least one for one year, one for two years, one for 
three years, one for four years, and one for five years. If a board has more than five 
members,  the  members  must  be  appointed  for  staggered  terms.  All  subsequent 
appointments  are  for  five-year  terms.  Each  board  member  shall  serve  until  a 
successor is appointed and qualified. If a vacancy occurs, the appointing government 
authority  shall  appoint  a  member  for  the  remainder  of  the  unexpired  term.  Each 
appointee shall qualify by filing the oath of office. A board of health may not be all male 
or all female. If the members of a governing body serve on a board of health or if an 
employee of a governing body serves on a board of health, this subsection does not 
apply to those governing body members and that employee.

4. A board of health shall meet at least quarterly. Special meetings may be held at any 
time at the call of the president.

5. Except if the governing body serves as the board of health, at the first meeting after 
appointment,  and  annually,  the  members  of  a  board  of  health  shall  organize  by 
electing  a  president,  a  vice  president,  and  other  officers  the  board  considers 
necessary.  If  there  is  a  treasurer  and the  treasurer  is  not  a  public  employee,  the 
treasurer must be bonded in an amount fixed by the board. If the health officer is not 
appointed to the board, the health officer does not have a vote in matters of the board. 
The office of secretary and treasurer may be combined.

6. The appointing authority shall establish the rate of compensation for board members 
and actual expenses incurred by board members may be reimbursed at the official 
reimbursement rates of the appointing authority.

23-35-04. Health districts - Formation - Contracting for services.
1. Upon the adoption  of  a  resolution,  the  governing body may form a  single  county, 

multicounty, city-county, or tribal health district.
2. Notwithstanding this chapter, in a county without a countywide public health unit, the 

board of county commissioners, upon adoption of a resolution, may contract with a city 
that has a public health department to provide health services to the county and in the 
cities throughout the county which do not have a public health unit. The contract must 
comply  with  chapter  54-40.3.  When  a  contract  is  executed,  any  provision  of  this 
chapter relating to organizing district  boards of  health does not apply,  and the city 
public health department shall exercise all the necessary powers and duties of a public 
health unit  under this chapter.  The department  shall  treat a county with a contract 
under this subsection as a public health unit.

23-35-05. Health districts - Expansion - Merger.
1. Upon adoption of a resolution, a county that is not included in any public health unit 

may request inclusion as a part of an existing health district. Upon receipt of a request 
to become part of an existing health district, the district board of health shall consider 
the request and, if the board approves the request by a majority vote, shall submit the 
matter to each county in the health district. If a majority of the counties approve the 
request by a majority vote, the requesting county becomes a part of the health district.

2. Upon expansion of a health district under this section, the number of board of health 
members  must  be  adjusted  to  allow  the  added  county  the  same  proportion  of 
members  allowed  to  member  cities  and  counties  of  the  existing  health  district  as 
determined under this chapter.

3. Any two or more health districts may merge into a single health district upon a majority 
vote of the respective boards of health and a majority vote of the governing body of 
each county. The assets of each merging health district become the property of the 
newly created health district. Board of health membership of a new health district must 
be determined under section 23-35-03, unless otherwise decided by the board. The 
new health district maintains the same authority and powers of the previous health 

Page No. 3



districts. The mill levy of the newly created health district is not limited by the old mill 
levy but may not exceed the amount allowed under section 23-35-07, unless one or 
more of the combining entities was previously levying more than five mills, in which 
case the mill levy for property within the former entity that was levying more than five 
mills may not exceed the cap, expressed in mills,  as previously authorized for that 
entity.

4. Upon adoption of a health district plan by two or more counties, the joint board of 
county commissioners shall appoint a district board of health.

23-35-06. Health districts - Dissolution - Withdrawal.
1. Except for a tribal health district, if a health district has been in operation for two years, 

the district may be dissolved as provided for under this section. If a petition is filed with 
the county auditor  of  each county of  a  health  district  which  is  signed by qualified 
electors of that county equal to ten percent or more of the votes cast in that county at 
the last general election, an election on the question of dissolution must be presented 
to the qualified electors in each county in the district at the next election held in each 
county in the district. If a majority of the votes cast on the question in a majority of the 
counties favor dissolution, the health district is dissolved on the second January first 
following the election. If a majority of the votes cast on the question in a majority of the 
counties are against dissolution, no other election on this issue may be held for two 
years.

2. If a health district has been in operation for two years, any county may withdraw from 
the district  as provided under this section. If  a petition is filed with the withdrawing 
county's auditor which is signed by qualified electors of the county equal to ten percent 
or more of the votes cast in that county at the last general election, an election on the 
question of withdrawal must be presented to the qualified electors in the county at the 
next  election  in  the  county.  If  a  majority  of  the  votes  cast  on  the  question  favor 
withdrawing from the district, the county is withdrawn from the district on the second 
January first following the election. If a majority of the votes cast on the question are 
against withdrawal, no other election on this issue may be held for two years.

3. A tribal health district may be dissolved by the tribal council or governing body at any 
time.

23-35-07. Health district funds - Financial report.
1. Except for a tribal health district, a district board of health shall prepare a budget for 

the next fiscal year at the time at which and in the manner in which a county budget is 
adopted and shall submit this budget to the joint board of county commissioners for 
approval. In the year for which the levy is sought, a district board of health, except for 
a tribal health district, seeking approval of a property tax levy under this chapter must 
file with the county auditor of each county within the health district, at a time and in a 
format prescribed by the county auditors, a financial report for the preceding calendar 
year showing the ending balances of each fund held by the health district during that 
year.  The  amount  budgeted  and  approved  must  be  prorated  in  health  districts 
composed of more than one county among the various counties in the health district 
according to the taxable valuation of the respective counties in the health district. For 
the purpose of this section, "prorated" means that each member county's contribution 
must be based on an equalized mill levy throughout the district, except as otherwise 
permitted under subsection 3 of section 23-35-05. Within ten days after approval by 
the joint board of county commissioners, the district board of health shall certify the 
budget to the respective county auditors and the budget must be included in the levies 
of the counties. The budget,  not including gifts, grants, donations, and contributions, 
may not exceed the amount that can be raised by a levy of five mills on the taxable 
valuation, subject to public hearing in each county in the health district at least fifteen 
days before an action taken by the joint board of county commissioners. Action taken 
by the joint board of county commissioners must be based on the record, including 
comments received at the public hearing. A levy under this section is not subject to the 

Page No. 4



limitation on the county tax levy for general and special county purposes. The amount 
derived by a levy under this section must be placed in the health district fund. The 
health  district  fund  must  be  deposited  with  and  disbursed  by the  treasurer  of  the 
district board of health. Each county in a health district quarterly shall remit and make 
settlements with the treasurer. Any funds remaining in the fund at the end of any fiscal 
year may be carried over to the next fiscal year.

2. Except  for  a tribal  health  district,  the district  board of  health,  or  the president  and 
secretary of  the  board  when authorized or  delegated by the  board,  shall  audit  all 
claims against  the health  district  fund.  The treasurer  shall  pay all  claims from the 
health district fund. The district board of health shall approve or ratify all claims at the 
board's quarterly meetings.

23-35-08. Boards of health - Powers and duties.
Except when in conflict with a local ordinance or a civil service rule within a board of health's 

jurisdiction, or a tribal code, ordinance, or policy, each board of health:
1. Shall keep records and make reports required by the department.
2. Shall prepare and submit a public health unit budget.
3. Shall audit, allow, and certify for payment expenses incurred by a board of health in 

carrying into effect this chapter.
4. May accept and expend any gift, grant, donation, or other contribution offered to aid in 

the work of the board of health or public health unit.
5. May make rules regarding any nuisance, source of filth, and any cause of sickness 

which are necessary for public health and safety.
6. May establish by rule a schedule of reasonable fees that may be charged for services 

rendered. Services may not be withheld due to an inability to pay any fees established 
under this subsection. If a tribal board of health establishes fees for services rendered, 
the fees may not exceed the highest corresponding fee of any of the public health 
units that border the tribal public health unit.

7. May make rules in a health district or county public health department, as the case 
may be, and in the case of a city public health department may recommend to the 
city's governing body ordinances for the protection of public health and safety.

8. May adopt confinement, decontamination, and sanitary measures in compliance with 
chapter 23-07.6 which are necessary when an infectious or contagious disease exists.

9. May make and enforce an order in a local matter if an emergency exists.
10. May inquire into any nuisance, source of filth, or cause of sickness.
11. Except in the case of an emergency, may conduct a search or seize material located 

on private property to ascertain the condition of the property as the condition relates to 
public  health and safety as authorized by an administrative search warrant  issued 
under chapter 29-29.1.

12. May  abate  or  remove  any  nuisance,  source  of  filth,  or  cause  of  sickness  when 
necessary to protect the public health and safety.

13. May supervise any matter  relating to preservation of  life  and health  of  individuals, 
including the supervision of any water supply and sewage system.

14. May isolate, kill, or remove any animal affected with a contagious or infectious disease 
if the animal poses a material risk to human health and safety.

15. Shall appoint a local health officer.
16. May employ any person necessary to effectuate board rules and this chapter.
17. If a public health unit is served by a part-time local health officer, the board of health 

may appoint  an executive  director.  An executive  director  is  subject  to  removal  for 
cause by the board of health. The board of health may assign to the executive director 
the duties of the local health officer, and the executive director shall  perform these 
duties under the direction of the local health officer.

18. May  contract  with  any  person  to  provide  the  services  necessary  to  carry  out  the 
purposes of the board of health.

19. Shall designate the location of a local health officer's office and shall furnish the office 
with necessary equipment.

Page No. 5



20. May provide for personnel the board of health considers necessary.
21. Shall set the salary of the local health officer, the executive director, and any assistant 

local  health  officer  and shall  set  the compensation  of  any other  public  health  unit 
personnel.

22. Shall  pay  for  necessary  travel  of  the  local  health  officer,  the  local  health  officer's 
assistants, and other personnel in the manner and to the extent determined by the 
board.

23-35-09. Abatement and removal of nuisance, source of filth, and cause of sickness.
1. If  necessary for  the  protection  of  public  health  to  abate  or  remove  any nuisance, 

source of  filth,  or  cause of  sickness,  the board of  health shall  serve notice on the 
owner or occupant of the property requiring the owner or occupant, at the owner's or 
occupant's expense,  to remove or  abate the nuisance,  source of  filth,  or  cause of 
sickness within a time specified by the board, not exceeding thirty days. If the owner or 
occupant fails to comply with the notice to remove or abate or if the nuisance, source 
of filth, or cause of sickness exists on property of nonresident owners or on property 
the owners of which cannot be found, the board of health may remove or destroy the 
nuisance, source of filth, or cause of sickness at the expense of the appropriate city or 
county, which shall  charge the expense against the lot, piece, or parcel of land on 
which the work is done.

2. The governing body of the city or county may levy and assess against the property the 
cost of the removal or destruction of a nuisance, source of filth, or cause of sickness, 
and the member of the governing body who is responsible for streets shall return and 
file the assessment in the office of the auditor of the city or county. The auditor shall 
publish, in the same manner as provided under section 40-22-06, the amount of the 
assessment together with a notice of the time and location the governing body will 
meet to consider the approval of the assessment. Each assessment must be recorded, 
collected, and paid as other taxes are recorded, collected, and paid.

3. If a board of health determines it necessary for the preservation of public health to 
enter  any  building  within  the  board's  jurisdiction  to  examine,  destroy,  remove,  or 
prevent any nuisance, source of filth, or cause of sickness and is refused entrance into 
the building, the local health officer, or a designated agent of the local health officer, 
may make a complaint under oath to a district judge within the jurisdiction of the board 
of health stating the facts in the case which the local health officer, or a designated 
agent of the local health officer, has knowledge. If a warrant is issued and if requested 
by a board of health, a county sheriff or city police department shall provide assistance 
to that public health unit in any action to search or seize material in or on any private 
property  to  destroy,  remove,  or  prevent  the  nuisance,  source  of  filth,  or  cause  of 
sickness, if there is probable cause to believe a public health hazard or public health 
nuisance  exists  on  or  in  that  property,  and  shall  carry  out  any  other  preventive 
measures the public health unit requests. For purposes of this subsection, a request 
from a public health unit means a request for assistance which is specific to a public 
health nuisance and is not a continuous request for assistance.

23-35-10. District boards of health - Acquiring and disposing of property.
1. A district  board of  health may acquire by lease,  purchase,  construction,  or  gift  for 

district  health office use and control  property for all  purposes authorized by law or 
necessary to the exercise of the powers granted in this chapter. The district board of 
health may finance the purchase, construction, or equipping of a building on owned or 
leased property for the use and purpose for which the health district is formed and 
carry out the functions of the health district in either of the following ways:
a. The district board of health may issue and sell bonds in an aggregate amount not 

exceeding two times the authorized tax revenues of the district for the year in 
which the bonds are to be issued and sold; or

Page No. 6



b. The district board of health may mortgage or otherwise encumber the building 
constructed in an amount not exceeding two times the authorized tax revenue of 
the district for the year in which the construction is to be commenced.

2. Bonds issued under this section and income under this section are exempt from any 
taxes except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. The indebtedness for which the 
bonds are issued, or for which a mortgage may be given as under this section, is 
neither  an obligation or  an indebtedness of  this  state nor  of  the counties or  cities 
comprising the district board of health. Any indebtedness under this section may be 
foreclosed in any manner provided by law. The district board of health may convey or 
transfer  property acquired as provided under  this  section.  If,  upon dissolution of  a 
health district, any balance remains in the health district fund after all obligations have 
been  paid,  the  balance  must  be  transferred  to  the  general  fund  of  the  counties 
comprising the health district  in proportion to the assessed valuation most recently 
used in preparing the health district budget under this chapter. If any county in the 
district  withdraws  from a  health  district,  any  assets  and inventory of  supplies  and 
equipment  located  in  the  county  for  use  in  health  district  programs  and  services 
remain the property of the district for use elsewhere in the district.

23-35-11. Budget.
A city, county, or health district, as the case may be, shall prepare a county public health 

unit budget for the next fiscal year at the time and in the manner a county budget is adopted and 
submit the budget to the board of county commissioners for approval, shall prepare a city public 
health unit budget for the next fiscal year and submit the budget to the governing body of the 
city for approval, or shall prepare a district budget as provided under this chapter. In the case of 
a city board of health, the board shall certify the expenses to the governing body for payment 
out of  the general  fund of the city.  The governing body or auditor shall  audit  any expenses 
incurred in quarantining or disinfecting any property outside an incorporated city and shall pay 
for any expenses out of the general fund of the county.

23-35-12. Local health officers.
1. A local health officer shall serve a term of five years, subject to removal for cause by 

the  governing  body  or  the  district  board  of  health.  The  health  officer  must  be  a 
physician licensed to practice medicine in this state and need not be a resident of the 
public health unit. The appointee shall qualify by filing the constitutional oath of office 
in the manner provided for the members of the board of health.  If  the state health 
officer finds a local health officer is failing to perform the duties of the position, the 
state health officer may report the case to the governing body of the appropriate city, 
county,  or  district  board  of  health.  At  the  next  meeting  of  the  city's  or  county's 
governing body or  district  board  of  health,  the governing body or  district  board of 
health shall  declare the office vacant and may appoint another physician to fill  the 
unexpired term, or shall report the matter to the board of health, and the board shall 
declare  the  office  vacant  and  promptly  shall  appoint  another  physician  to  fill  the 
unexpired term.

2. Within the jurisdiction of the board of health, a local health officer:
a. Shall keep a record of the official acts of the local health officer.
b. Shall  enforce every law and rule relating to preservation of  life  and health of 

individuals.
c. May exercise the powers and duties of the board of health under the supervision 

of the board of health.
d. May make sanitary inspections of any place within the jurisdiction in which the 

local health officer finds a probability a health-threatening condition exists.
e. May investigate public water and ice supplies suspected of contamination and 

initiate necessary condemnation proceedings.
f. May enforce school cleanliness; inspect any school that may be overcrowded, 

poorly  ventilated,  or  unsanitary;  and,  when  necessary,  report  cases  of  any 
unsanitary or unsafe school building to the board of health for investigation.

Page No. 7



g. May take any action necessary for the protection of public health and safety.
h. May  determine  when  confinement  and  decontamination  is  necessary  for  the 

safety  of  the  public.  The  local  health  officer  may  establish  confinements 
consistent with procedures provided under chapter 23-07.6 and perform any acts 
required for decontamination when necessary.

i. Shall maintain an office within the jurisdiction of the public health unit consistent 
with any terms of appointment.

j. May select and discharge any assistant health officer in the public health unit, 
consistent with any terms of appointment.

3. A local health officer  may request  the assistance of  a county sheriff  or  city health 
department in the same manner as provided under subsection 3 of section 23-35-09.

23-35-13. Penalty.
A person who violates any order, ordinance, or rule prescribed by any board of health or 

health officer or any rule adopted under this chapter is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.

Page No. 8



Foundational Public 
Health Services

Health departments have a fundamental 
responsibility to provide public health protections 
and services in a number of areas, including: 
preventing the spread of communicable disease; 
ensuring food, air, and water quality are safe; 
supporting maternal and child health; improving 
access to clinical care services; and preventing 
chronic disease and injury. In addition, public 
health departments provide local protections and 
services specific to their community’s needs.

Health departments serve their communities 24/7  
and require access to a wide range of critical data 
sources, robust laboratory capacity, preparedness and 
policy planning capacity, partnerships with community, 
and expert staff to leverage them in support of public 
health protections.

The Foundational Public Health Services framework 
outlines the unique responsibilities of governmental 
public health and defines a minimum set of 
Foundational Capabilities and Foundational Areas 
that must be available in every community.

Community-specific Services are local protections and services that are unique to the needs of a community. 
These services are essential to that community’s health and vary by jurisdiction.

Foundational Areas

Public health programs, or Foundational Areas, 
are basic public health, topic-specific programs 
and services aimed at improving the health of the 
community. The Foundational Areas reflect the 
minimum level of service that should be available 
in all communities.

Foundational Capabilities

Public health infrastructure consists of 
Foundational Capabilities that are the cross-
cutting skills and capacities needed to support 
basic public health protections, programs, and 
activities key to ensuring community health, 
 well-being and achieving equitable outcomes.

Foundational  
Public Health 
Services 
Framework



2

Foundational Capabilities
There are eight Foundational Capabilities that are needed in Public Health Infrastructure.

Assessment & Surveillance
• Ability to collect timely and sufficient foundational data 

to guide public health planning and decision making at 
the state and local level, including the personnel and 
technology that enable collection. 

• Ability to collect, access, analyze, interpret, and use data 
from a variety of sources including granular data and 
data disaggregated by geography (e.g., census tract, 
zip code), sub-populations, race, ethnicity, and other 
variables that fully describe the health and well-being  
of a community and the factors that influence health. 

• Ability to assess and analyze disparities and inequities 
in the distribution of disease and social determinants of 
health, that contribute to higher health risks and poorer 
health outcomes.

• Ability to prioritize and respond to data requests and 
translate data into information and reports that are 
valid, complete, statistically accurate, and accessible  
to the intended audiences.

• Ability to conduct a collaborative community  
or statewide health assessment and identify  
health priorities arising from that assessment, 
including analysis of root causes of health  
disparities and inequities.

• Ability to access 24/7 laboratory resources capable  
of providing rapid detection.

• Ability to participate in or support surveillance systems 
to rapidly detect emerging health issues and threats.

• Ability to work with community partners to collect, 
report and use public health data that is relevant to 
communities experiencing health inequities or ability  
to support community-led data processes.

Community Partnership 
Development

• Ability to create, convene, support, and sustain strategic, 
non-program specific relationships with key community 
groups or organizations representing populations 
experiencing health disparities or inequities; private 
businesses and health care organizations; relevant 

federal, Tribal, state, and local government agencies; 
elected and non-elected officials.

• Ability to leverage and engage partnerships and 
community in equity solutions.

• Ability to establish and maintain trust with and 
authentically engage community members and 
populations most impacted by inequities in key  
public health decision-making and use community-
driven approaches.

• Ability to convene across governmental agencies, such 
as departments of transportation, aging, substance 
abuse/mental health, education, planning and 
development, or others, to promote health, prevent 
disease, and protect community members of the health 
department’s jurisdiction.

• Ability to engage members of the community 
and multi-sector partners in a community health 
improvement process that draws from community 
health assessment data and establishes a plan 
for addressing priorities. The community health 
improvement plan can serve as the basis for 
coordination of effort and resources across partners. 

Equity
• Ability to strategically address social and structural 

determinants of health through policy, programs, and 
services as a necessary pathway to achieve equity. 

• Ability to systematically integrate equity into each 
aspect of the FPHS, strategic priorities, and include 
equity-related accountability metrics into all programs 
and services.

• Ability to work collaboratively across the department 
and the community to build support for and foster a 
shared understanding of the critical importance of 
equity to achieve community health and well-being.

• Ability to develop and support staff to address equity.

• Ability to create a shared understanding of what creates 
health including structural and systemic factors that 
produce and reproduce inequities.



3

Organizational Competencies
• Leadership & Governance: Ability to lead internal  

and external stakeholders to consensus, with 
movement to action, and to serve as the face of 
governmental public health in the department’s 
jurisdiction. Ability to directly engage in health policy 
development, discussion, and adoption with local, 
state, and national policymakers, and to define a 
strategic direction for public health initiatives, including 
the advancement of equity. Ability to prioritize and 
implement diversity, equity, and inclusion within 
the organization. Ability to engage with appropriate 
governing entities about the department’s public health 
legal authorities and what new laws and policies might 
be needed. Ability to ensure diverse representation on 
public health boards and councils.

• Information Technology Services, including Privacy 
& Security: Ability to maintain and procure the 
hardware and software needed to access electronic 
health information to support the department’s 
operations and analysis of health data. Ability 
to support, use, and maintain communication 
technologies and systems needed to interact with 
community members. Ability to have the proper 
systems and controls in place to keep health and 
human resources data confidential and maintain 
security of IT systems.

• Workforce Development & Human Resources: 
Ability to develop and maintain a diverse and 
inclusive workforce with the cross-cutting skills 
and competencies needed to implement the FPHS 
effectively and equitably. Ability to manage human 
resource functions including recruitment, retention, 
and succession planning; training; and performance 
review and accountability.

• Financial Management, Contract, & Procurement 
Services, including Facilities and Operations: Ability 
to establish a budgeting, auditing, billing, and financial 
system and chart of expense and revenue accounts 
in compliance with federal, state, and local standards 
and policies. Ability to secure grants or other funding 
(governmental and not) and demonstrate compliance 
with an audit required for the sources of funding 
utilized. Ability to procure, maintain, and manage safe 
facilities and efficient operations. Ability to leverage 
funding and ensure resources are allocated to address 
equity and social determinants of health. 

• Legal Services & Analysis: Ability to access 
and appropriately use legal services in planning, 
implementing, and enforcing, public health initiatives, 
including relevant administrative rules and due process

Policy Development and Support
• Ability to serve as a primary and expert resource for 

establishing, maintaining, and developing basic public 
health policy recommendations that are evidence-
based and grounded in law. This includes researching, 
analyzing, costing out, and articulating the impact of 
such policies and rules where appropriate, as well as 
the ability to organize support for these policies and 
rules and place them before an entity with the legal 
authority to adopt them.

• Ability to effectively inform and influence policies 
being considered by other governmental and non-
governmental agencies that can improve the physical, 
environmental, social, and economic conditions  
affecting health but are beyond the immediate scope or 
authority of the governmental public health department.

• Ability to effectively advocate for policies that  
address social determinants of health, health 
disparities and equity.

• Ability to issue, promote compliance with or,  
as mandated, enforce compliance with public  
health regulations. 

Accountability & Performance 
Management

• Ability to perform according to accepted business 
standards in accordance with applicable federal, state, 
and local laws and policies and assure compliance 
with national and Public Health Accreditation Board 
Standards. 

• Ability to maintain a performance management system 
to monitor achievement of organizational objectives. 

• Ability to identify and use evidence-based or  
promising practices when implementing new or  
revised processes, programs and/or interventions. 

• Ability to maintain an organization-wide culture of 
quality and to use quality improvement tools  
and methods.

• Ability to create accountability structures and internal 
and external equity-related metrics to measure the equity 
impact of a department’s efforts and performance. 



4

Emergency Preparedness  
and Response

• Ability to develop, exercise, and maintain preparedness 
and response strategies and plans, in accordance 
with established guidelines, and to address a range 
of events including natural or other disasters, 
communicable disease outbreaks, environmental 
emergencies, or other events, which may be acute or 
occur over time. 

• Ability to integrate social determinants of health, and 
actions to address inequities, including ensuring the 
protection of high-risk populations, into all plans, 
programs, and services. 

• Ability to lead the Emergency Support Function 
8 — Public Health & Medical for the county, region, 
jurisdiction, and state.

• Ability to activate the emergency response personnel 
and communications systems in the event of a public 
health crisis; coordinate with federal, state, and local 
emergency managers and other first responders, 
and private sector and non-profit partners; and 
operate within, and as necessary lead, the incident 
management system.

• Ability to maintain and execute a continuity of operations 
plan that includes a plan to access financial resources to 
execute an emergency and recovery response.

• Ability to establish and promote basic, ongoing 
community readiness, resilience, and preparedness  
by enabling the public to take necessary action  
before, during, or after a disaster, emergency, or  
public health event. 

• Ability to issue and enforce emergency health orders.

• Ability to be notified of and respond to events on a  
24/7 basis.

• Ability to access and utilize a Laboratory Response 
Network (LRN) Reference laboratory for biological 
agents and an LRN chemical laboratory at a level 
designated by CDC.

Communications
• Ability to maintain ongoing relations with local and 

statewide media including the ability to write a press 
release, conduct a press conference, and use electronic 
communication tools to interact with the media.

• Ability to effectively use social media to communicate 
directly with community members. 

• Ability to appropriately tailor communications and 
communications mechanisms for various audiences.

• Ability to write and implement a routine 
communications plan and develop routine public health 
communications including to reach communities not 
traditionally reached through public health channels.

• Ability to develop and implement a risk communication 
strategy for communicating with the public during a 
public health crisis or emergency. This includes the 
ability to provide accurate and timely information and 
to address misconceptions and misinformation, and to  
assure information is accessible to and appropriate for 
all audiences. 

• Ability to transmit and receive routine communications 
to and from the public in an appropriate, timely, and 
accurate manner, on a 24/7 basis.

• Ability to develop and implement a proactive health 
education/health communication strategy (distinct 
from risk communication) that disseminates timely 
and accurate information to the public designed to 
encourage actions to promote health in culturally 
and linguistically appropriate formats for the various 
communities served, including using electronic 
communication tools.



5

Foundational Areas
There are five Foundational Areas, also known as Public Health Programs. Social determinants of health 
and actions to address health inequities should be integrated throughout all activities.

Communicable Disease Control
• Provide timely, statewide, and locally relevant and 

accurate information to the health care system and 
community on communicable diseases and their control.

• Identify statewide and local communicable disease 
control community partners and their capacities, 
develop, and implement a prioritized communicable 
disease control plan, and ability to seek and secure 
funding for high priority initiatives.

• Receive laboratory reports and other relevant data; 
conduct disease investigations, including contact tracing 
and notification; and recognize, identify, and respond 
to communicable disease outbreaks for notifiable 
conditions in accordance with local, national, and state 
mandates and guidelines.

• Assure the availability of partner notification services 
for newly diagnosed cases of communicable diseases 
according to Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) guidelines.

• Assure the appropriate treatment of individuals who 
have reportable communicable diseases, such as TB, 
STIs, and HIV in accordance with local and state laws 
and CDC guidelines. 

• Support the recognition of outbreaks and other events 
of public health significance by assuring capacity for 
the identification and characterization of the causative 
agents of disease and their origin, including those that 
are rare and unusual.

• Coordinate and integrate categorically-funded 
communicable disease programs and services.

Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention
• Provide timely, statewide, and locally relevant, 

complete, and accurate information to the health care 
system and community on chronic disease and injury 
prevention and control.

• Identify statewide and local chronic disease and injury 
prevention community partners and their capacities, 
develop, and implement a prioritized prevention plan,  
and ability to seek and secure funding for high priority 
initiatives.

• Reduce statewide and community rates of tobacco use 
through a program that conforms to standards set by 
state or local laws and CDC’s Office on Smoking and 
Health, including activities to reduce youth initiation, 
increase cessation, and reduce secondhand exposure  
to harmful substances.

• Work actively with statewide and community partners 
to increase statewide and community rates of healthy 
eating and active living through a prioritized approach 
focusing on best and promising practices aligned with 
national, state, and local guidelines for healthy eating  
and active living.

• Coordinate and integrate categorically-funded chronic 
disease and injury prevention programs and services.

Environmental Public Health
• Provide timely, statewide, and locally relevant, 

complete, and accurate information to the state, health 
care system, and community on environmental public 
health threats and health impacts from common 
environmental or toxic exposures.

• Identify statewide and local community environmental 
public health partners and their capacities, develop, 
and implement a prioritized plan, and ability to seek and 
secure action funding for high priority initiatives.

• Conduct mandated environmental public health 
laboratory testing, inspections, and oversight to protect 
food, recreation sites, and drinking water; manage 
liquid and solid waste streams safely; and identify other 
public health hazards related to environmental factors 
in accordance with federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations.

• Protect workers and the public from chemical and 
radiation hazards in accordance with federal, state, and 
local laws and regulations.

• Participate in broad land use planning and sustainable 
development to encourage decisions that promote 
positive public health outcomes and resilient 
communities (e.g., housing and urban development, 
recreational facilities, transportation systems and 
climate change).

• Coordinate and integrate categorically-funded 
environmental public health programs and services.



6

Maternal, Child and Family Health
• Provide timely, statewide, and locally relevant, 

complete, and accurate information to the health care 
system and community on emerging and on-going 
maternal child health trends.

• Identify local maternal and child health community 
partners and their capacities; using life course 
expertise and an understanding of health disparities, 
develop a prioritized prevention plan; and ability to 
seek and secure funding for high priority initiatives.

• Identify, disseminate, and promote emerging and 
evidence-based early interventions in the prenatal and 
early childhood period that promote lifelong health and 
positive social-emotional development.

• Assure newborn screening as mandated by a state  
or local governing body including wraparound  
services, reporting back, following up, and service 
engagement activities.

• Coordinate and integrate categorically funded maternal, 
child, and family health programs and services.

Access to & Linkage with Care
• Provide timely, statewide, and locally relevant, complete, 

and accurate information to the health care system 
and community on access and linkage to clinical care 
(including behavioral health), healthcare system access, 
quality, and cost.

• Inspect and license healthcare facilities, and license, 
monitor, and discipline healthcare providers, where 
applicable.

• In concert with national and statewide groups and 
local providers of healthcare, identify healthcare 
partners and competencies, develop prioritized plans 
for increasing access to health homes and quality 
health care, and seek funding for high priority policy 
initiatives.



1 
 

ND CENTURY CODE CHAPTER 23-35: PUBLIC HEALTH UNITS  
Green denotes BBPH receives grant funds to support the service. May not cover the entire cost.  
Blue denotes billable service via health insurance reimbursement, fees, employer pay, private pay. May not cover entire cost. 
Brown denotes a non-billable service provided for public health and safety of the community. 
ND Century Code: 23-35-08 - Services may not be withheld due to inability to pay.  
 

23-35-02. Public Health Units – Core functions 
1. All land in the state must be in a public health unit.  
2. At a minimum, a public health unit shall provide the following core functions: 

 

A. Communicable Disease control which must include: Comments: 
A1. Conducting of disease surveillance for the purpose of preventing and 
controlling communicable disease, with assistance from the department. 
• Tuberculosis (TB) screening and management of positive cases. 
• Treatment of latent TB (so it doesn’t become active) through administration of 

medication and monitoring of side effects.   
• Direct observation therapy provided to active TB cases in the community. 
• Provide wrap around services for active TB cases in the community including food, 

lodging and basic needs to maintain isolation requirements of individuals.  
• Confidential STD/HIV/Hepatitis C testing, counseling, and treatment to all residents. 
• Surveillance and monitoring for new and ongoing emergency public health threats.   

 
• Review of student immunization records for Burleigh County Schools to ensure students 

are compliant with state law. 
 

 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Non-billable service.   
Done for Burleigh County Schools 
only, Bismarck schools have their own 
nurses providing this service. 

A2. Assurance of the availability of community-based programs to provide 
communicable disease prevention and control services. 
• BBPH protects the community from communicable disease through 

administration of vaccines. All vaccines offered to all populations both in clinic and at 
offsite locations in the community (Vaccines for Children, Vaccines for Adults, Privately 
Purchased Vaccines) and maintain compliance with storage and handling, 
documentation requirements, and submission of data to the state health department 
including tracking of temperatures, documentation of lot numbers, and maintenance of 
storage equipment. The Vaccines for Children (VFC) program is a federally funded 
program that provides vaccines to children 0 through 18 years of age who are either 
Medicaid eligible, American Indian or Alaskan Native, uninsured or underinsured (a child 
whose health insurance benefit plan does not cover vaccines or a particular vaccine).  

 
 
Billable service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://ndlegis.gov/cencode/t23c35.pdf
https://ndlegis.gov/information/acdata/pdf/33-06-05.pdf


2 
 

 
• Travel vaccination administration. We are the only travel vaccine provider in the 

state outside of Fargo. Vaccines are required to travel to international locations, local 
clinics do not provide this service.   
 

• All recommended vaccines offered to all school staff and students in Bismarck and 
Burleigh County Schools in accordance with state law. 

 
 

• Infection control specialist/RN provides bloodborne pathogen training for BBPH staff and 
by request to departments and/or community organizations. 

• N-95 Mask Fit Testing provided to regional health care agencies and first responders to 
ensure protection from communicable disease.  

• Personal protective equipment (PPE) donning and doffing training for healthcare agencies 
and first responders to prevent exposure to communicable disease.  

 
Billable service.  
 
 
 
Billable service 
Required by state law to attend school. 
Offered in schools and at BBPH office. 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services.  
 
 
 

A3. Recognition, identification, and response to a communicable disease event, in 
collaboration with the department of health and human services. 
• Investigate recreational water outbreaks in Burleigh County.  
• Manage the vector/mosquito control program for the City of Bismarck which includes 

placing light traps, tracking mosquito counts, fogging, and treating stagnant water to 
prevent vector borne illness. (West Nile, Zika).  

• Maintain records of the mosquito control pesticide applications and report to the state 
agriculture department. 

 
• Public health works with local health care facilities and community stakeholders to develop 

plans, conduct community exercises, and will respond to a communicable disease 
emergency such as the COVID-19 pandemic, H1N1 influenza pandemic, etc. For 
example, efforts during COVID-19 response included: established a Department 
Operations Center (DOC), engaged City departments to establish an EOC (Emergency 
Operations Center) to coordinate community response to the COVID pandemic. Duties 
included public education, contact tracing, COVID-19 testing by appointment, mass 
COVID-19 testing clinics, COVID-19 vaccinations by appointment, mass COVID 
vaccination clinics, COVID-19 homeless shelter operations and wrap around service 
coordination for food, lodging, medication, and basic needs supplies for COVID positive 
cases to maintain compliance with isolation.    
 

 
 
Non-billable service.   
Environmental Health Specialists 
provide these services.  
 
 
 
 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://ndlegis.gov/information/acdata/pdf/33-06-05.pdf


3 
 

B. Chronic disease and injury prevention, which must include conducting programs 
to reduce the burden of chronic disease and injury through policy, system, and 
environmental change approach; prevention screening; and education. 

• Adult and Child Health Assessments at BBPH office scheduled with an RN. 
• Health Tracks child health screening program which includes developmental screening, 

physical assessment, hearing and vision screening, orthodontic screening, and 
immunizations.  

• Preventive health screenings for diabetes and heart disease prevention scheduled with 
an RN or Licensed Registered Dietician which includes blood glucose testing, cholesterol 
testing, and blood pressure checks.  

• Blood pressure screening clinics in the community by request and blood pressure checks 
by appointment at BBPH office. 

• Child passenger safety seat program at Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health. Includes 
education, inspection, and installation of car safety seats by a Certified Car Seat 
Technician.  

• Worksite wellness program development assistance from a Licensed Registered Dietician 
and RN’s.  

 
• Public education by Registered Nurses or Licensed Registered Dietician on health 

prevention topics. 
 

• Support and create livable communities that enable healthy living and prevent chronic 
disease.  

• Address gaps in the community to ensure access to healthy food, physical activities for 
chronic disease prevention. 

 
• Tobacco prevention education and tobacco cessation services for the community.  
• Tobacco Prevention presentations and education to schools and colleges.  
• Host annual Break Free Youth Action Summit for youth tobacco prevention education.  
• Tobacco policy enforcement and compliance efforts. Assist public and private schools and 

colleges with comprehensive tobacco free policies.  
• Partner with law enforcement to conduct tobacco compliance checks.  
• Substance abuse prevention education in community including schools & service 

organizations.  
• Organize public events with student committees to provide education to peers and parents 

about substance abuse prevention.  

 
 
 
Billable services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Non-billable service.   
 
 
Receive limited/intermittent 
grant funding offset by 
general fund. 
 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

• Host parent education events on warning signs and resources for substance abuse. 
• Tobacco Prevention/Substance Abuse Prevention/Behavioral Health Coalition 

management including (Bismarck Tobacco Free Coalition, Break Free Youth Board, DFC 
Advisory Committee/Student Committee, Burleigh-Morton Behavioral Health Coalition). 

• CPR/AED training courses offered by request. 
• Narcan training offered for community organizations and individuals.  
• Provide Opioid Education kits and Narcan Overdose kits to training participants. 
• Host prescription drug take back events to educate the public on proper disposal for 

unused medications and offer Deterra bags for at home medication disposal.   
• Provide Narcan supplies for emergency first responders. 

 
• Employee health and wellness program and services for City and County employees and 

area law enforcement agencies. Ensure compliance with ND Century Code for law 
enforcement health screenings.  

Receive grant funding to 
support these services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Receive limited grant funding 
for wellness.  
Billable services. 
Cost savings for us to provide this 
service to law enforcement versus 
private clinic or another medical 
provider.   

C. Environmental public health which must include:  
            C1. Prevention of environmental hazards by the provision of information and  

            education to facility operators and managers and to community members. 
• Public Health Nuisance Complaints – A public health nuisance complaint is a condition 

which threatens the health of the public.  Types of public health nuisance complaints 
investigated include junk storage, rodent harborage but do not include sewage/drainage 
or storm drainage types of complaints. 

• Air Quality – BBPH would act primarily in an advisory capacity and provide an onsite 
assessment if requested.  

• Investigate rental housing complaints, minimal habitability standards. 
 

• Food establishment and food service licensing and inspections 
• Tanning facility inspections  
• Lodging facility inspections 
• Public/Semi-Public Swimming Pool Inspections - BBPH would inspect public/semi-public 

swimming pools and license as applicable. 
• Special pet licensing  

 
 

 
 
Non-billable service.   
Environmental Health Specialists 
provide these services.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
Licensing & permit fees 
support these services. 
Environmental Health Specialists 
provide these services.  
 



5 
 

     C2. Assurance of the availability of environmental health services to prevent and    
           respond to community and residential environmental hazards. 

• Emergency planning and medication distribution for catastrophic and/or disaster 
situations utilizing Point of Dispensing (POD) plans.  
 

• Environmental health staff investigate bed bug and cockroach complaints; provide 
education on prevention and infestation removal. 

• Environmental Health Specialists and RNs are called upon for home inspections of 
vulnerable adults, hoarding situations, and child protective services visits.   
 

• RN’s perform head lice checks and provide education and training for head lice 
screenings/head checks and proper protocols for head lice infestation. 

 

 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services. 
 
Non-billable service.   
 
 
 
 
Nonbillable for Burleigh 
County Schools it’s part of 
the Burleigh County contract. 
Billable service for 
appointments at BBPH. 
 

D. Maternal, child, and family health, which must include:  
     D1. Assessment and monitoring of maternal and child health status to identify and   
            address problems. 

• Vision/hearing screenings offered to school-aged children Burleigh County Schools.  
 

• Vision/hearing screenings scheduled at BBPH is a billable service.  
 

Nonbillable for Burleigh 
County Schools it’s part of 
the Burleigh County contract. 
  
Billable service for 
appointments at BBPH. 

     D2. Implementation of programs to promote the health of women, children and youth   
            and their families through policy, system and environmental change approaches;      
            prevention screenings; and education.  

• Community and work site support to establish breastfeeding spaces for nursing 
mothers and provide support for policy development. 

• Nutrition and physical activity education and support for children and families. 
 

 
• Beyond Birth Education Program. RN’s provide phone calls and home visits within 1-2 

weeks of infant’s birth as requested by the infant’s mother. Visits are to assess both 
the baby and mother, assist with health concerns, and promote breastfeeding and. 
Height and weight checks are done on infants.  

 

 
 
 
Receive limited/intermittent 
grant funding offset by 
general fund. 
 
 
Phone calls/education non-
billable. Visit is billable 
service for Medicaid clients if 
a comprehensive assessment 
is done. 



6 
 

 
• Hands-on breastfeeding education and support services provided by Certified 

Lactation Counselors and International Board-Certified Lactation Consultants to 
mothers.  
 

• Nurse Family Partnership Program – Trained RN’s regularly visit first-time moms, starting 
early in the pregnancy and continuing until the child’s second birthday. During these visits, 
RN’s Improve pregnancy outcomes by partnering with moms to engage in good preventive 
health practices, including thorough prenatal care from their healthcare providers, improving 
their diets and reducing any use of habit-forming substances; visits also improve child health 
and development by assisting families to provide responsible and competent care; and 
improve the economic self-sufficiency of the family by supporting parents to develop a vision 
for their own future, plan additional pregnancies, continue their education and find work. 

 
Receive limited/intermittent 
grant funding offset by general 
fund. Non-billable service. 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services.  

E. Access to clinical care, which must include:  
E1. Collaboration with health care system partners to foster access to clinical care.  
E2. Facilitation of linkages and referrals to appropriate clinical care, services and  
       resources. 

• Women’s Way breast and cervical cancer screening assistance available for 
individuals meeting age, income, and insurance guidelines.  

• Breast and cervical cancer coordination for diagnostic testing and treatment.  
• Case management and patient navigation services for Burleigh County residents who 

meet program eligibility guidelines. 
• Nurse Family Partnership Program 

 
• Home health maintenance nursing services.  
• Injections provided by RNs for mental health treatment and other medical conditions 

as ordered by physician. 
• Medication management services by an RN which includes setting up medication 

planners, coordination with medical providers, monitor for medication compliance with 
medications. 

• Medical foot care services for diabetics and individuals with peripheral vascular 
disease, elderly, and individuals with disabilities.  
 

• Social worker meets with health maintenance clients in their homes to discuss their 
needs and make referrals to services and resources within the community. 

 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services. 
 
 
 
 
 
Billable services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Receive grant funding to 
support these services. 
 



7 
 

 
 
The 10 Essential Public Health Services are not listed specifically in ND Century Code but serve as the national 
framework for carrying out the mission of public health in the communities we serve. 
 
Other BBPH Roles/Responsibilities that Align with the 10 Essential Public Health Services:  

• Community Health Needs Assessment completed every 3 years in collaboration with local hospitals to identify 
community health concerns and needs which informs the Community Health Improvement Plan and the 
department’s Strategic Plan.  

• BBPH fills gaps in health needs in the community identified through the community health needs assessment 
process. 

• Participation and engagement with community service providers serving the vulnerable populations in the 
community including homelessness, housing, and case management.  

• A physician health officer is required and appointed to serve the City and the County. The Health Officer serves 
as the medical director and issues standing orders with oversight for clinical services. This is done through a 
contract for service.  

 

The 10 Essential Public Health Services 
The 10 Essential Public Health Services provide a framework for public health to protect and promote the health of all 
people in all communities. Essential Public Health Services actively promote policies, systems, and overall community 
conditions that enable optimal health for all and seek to remove systemic and structural barriers that have resulted in health 
inequities. 

1. Assess and monitor population health status, factors that influence health, and community needs and assets. 
2. Investigate, diagnose, and address health problems and hazards affecting the population. 
3. Communicate effectively to inform and educate people about health, factors that influence it, and how to improve it. 
4. Strengthen, support, and mobilize communities and partnerships to improve health. 
5. Create, champion, and implement policies, plans, and laws that impact health. 
6. Utilize legal and regulatory actions designed to improve and protect the public’s health. 
7. Assure an effective system that enables equitable access to the individual services and care needed to be healthy. 
8. Build and support a diverse and skilled public health workforce. 
9. Improve and innovate public health functions through ongoing evaluation, research, and continuous quality 

improvement. 
10. Build and maintain a strong organizational infrastructure for public health. 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwio5tWA0-yEAxW5nokEHSWeAeAQFnoECCYQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fphaboard.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2FEPHS-English.pdf&usg=AOvVaw0iwkPgowl6H4onhLOLo1bv&opi=89978449


THE 10 ESSENTIAL 
PUBLIC HEALTH 
SERVICES
To protect and promote the health of all people in 
all communities

The 10 Essential Public Health Services provide a 
framework for public health to protect and promote 
the health of all people in all communities. To achieve 
equity, the Essential Public Health Services actively promote 
policies, systems, and overall community conditions that 
enable optimal health for all and seek to remove systemic 
and structural barriers that have resulted in health inequities.  
Such barriers include poverty, racism, gender discrimination, 
ableism, and other forms of oppression. Everyone should 
have a fair and just opportunity to achieve optimal health 
and well-being.

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #1
Assess and monitor population 
health status, factors that influence 
health, and community needs and 
assets

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #3 
Communicate effectively to inform 
and educate people about health, 
factors that influence it, and how to 
improve it

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #6 
Utilize legal and regulatory actions 
designed to improve and protect the 
public’s health

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #7
Assure an effective system that 
enables equitable access to the 
individual services and care needed 
to be healthy

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #9
Improve and innovate public health 
functions through ongoing evaluation, 
research, and continuous quality 
improvement

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #10
Build and maintain a strong 
organizational infrastructure for 
public health

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #8
Build and support a diverse and 
skilled public health workforce

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #5 
Create, champion, and implement 
policies, plans, and laws that impact 
health 

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #4
Strengthen, support, and mobilize  
communities and partnerships to 
improve health

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE #2
Investigate, diagnose, and address 
health problems and hazards 
affecting the population

Created 2020



2Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #1

Assess and monitor population health status, 
factors that influence health, and community 
needs and assets 

• Maintaining an ongoing understanding 
of health in the jurisdiction by collecting, 
monitoring, and analyzing data on health 
and factors that influence health to 
identify threats, patterns, and emerging 
issues, with a particular emphasis on 
disproportionately affected populations

• Using data and information to 
determine the root causes of health 
disparities and inequities

• Working with the community to 
understand health status, needs, assets, 
key influences, and narrative

• Collaborating and facilitating data 
sharing with partners, including multi-
sector partners 

• Using innovative technologies, data 
collection methods, and data sets

• Utilizing various methods and 
technology to interpret and communicate 
data to diverse audiences

• Analyzing and using disaggregated 
data (e.g., by race) to track issues and 
inform equitable action

• Engaging community members as 
experts and key partners

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



3Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #2

Investigate, diagnose, and address health 
problems and hazards affecting the 
population

• Anticipating, preventing, and mitigating 
emerging health threats through 
epidemiologic identification

• Monitoring real-time health status 
and identifying patterns to develop 
strategies to address chronic diseases 
and injuries

• Using real-time data to identify 
and respond to acute outbreaks, 
emergencies, and other health hazards

• Using public health laboratory 
capabilities and modern technology to 
conduct rapid screening and high-volume 
testing

• Analyzing and utilizing inputs from 
multiple sectors and sources to consider 
social, economic, and environmental root 
causes of health status

• Identifying, analyzing, and distributing 
information from new, big, and real-time 
data sources

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



4Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #3

Communicate effectively to inform and 
educate people about health, factors that 
influence it, and how to improve it

• Developing and disseminating 
accessible health information and 
resources, including through collaboration 
with multi-sector partners 

• Communicating with accuracy and 
necessary speed

• Using appropriate communications 
channels (e.g., social media, peer-
to-peer networks, mass media, and 
other channels) to effectively reach the 
intended populations

• Developing and deploying culturally 
and linguistically appropriate and 
relevant communications and 
educational resources, which includes 
working with stakeholders and influencers 
in the community to create effective and 
culturally resonant materials

• Employing the principles of risk 
communication, health literacy, and 
health education to inform the public, 
when appropriate

• Actively engaging in two-way 
communication to build trust with 
populations served and ensure accuracy 
and effectiveness of prevention and 
health promotion strategies

• Ensuring public health communications 
and education efforts are asset-
based when appropriate and do not 
reinforce narratives that are damaging to 
disproportionately affected populations

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



5Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #4

Strengthen, support, and mobilize  
communities and partnerships to 
improve health

• Convening and facilitating multi-
sector partnerships and coalitions that 
include sectors that influence health 
(e.g., planning, transportation, housing, 
education, etc.)

• Fostering and building genuine, 
strengths-based relationships with a 
diverse group of partners that reflect the 
community and the population 

• Authentically engaging with community 
members and organizations to develop 
public health solutions 

• Learning from, and supporting, 
existing community partnerships and 
contributing public health expertise

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



6Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #5

Create, champion, and implement policies, 
plans, and laws that impact health

• Developing and championing policies, 
plans, and laws that guide the practice of 
public health

• Examining and improving existing 
policies, plans, and laws to correct 
historical injustices

• Ensuring that policies, plans, and laws 
provide a fair and just opportunity for 
all to achieve optimal health

• Providing input into policies, plans, 
and laws to ensure that health impact is 
considered

• Continuously monitoring and 
developing policies, plans, and laws that 
improve public health and preparedness 
and strengthen community resilience 

• Collaborating with all partners, 
including multi-sector partners, to develop 
and support policies, plans, and laws

• Working across partners and with 
the community to systematically and 
continuously develop and implement 
health improvement strategies and plans, 
and evaluate and improve those plans

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



7Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #6

Utilize legal and regulatory actions designed 
to improve and protect the public’s health

• Ensuring that applicable laws are 
equitably applied to protect the public’s 
health

• Conducting enforcement activities 
that may include, but are not limited to 
sanitary codes, especially in the food 
industry; full protection of drinking water 
supplies; and timely follow-up on hazards, 
preventable injuries, and exposure-
related diseases identified in occupational 
and community settings

• Licensing and monitoring the quality 
of healthcare services (e.g., laboratory, 
nursing homes, and home healthcare)

• Reviewing new drug, biologic, and 
medical device applications

• Licensing and credentialing the 
healthcare workforce

• Including health considerations in laws 
from other sectors (e.g., zoning)

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



8Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #7

Assure an effective system that enables 
equitable access to the individual services 
and care needed to be healthy

• Connecting the population to needed 
health and social services that support 
the whole person, including preventive 
services

• Ensuring access to high-quality and 
cost-effective healthcare and social 
services, including behavioral and mental 
health services, that are culturally and 
linguistically appropriate

• Engaging health delivery systems to 
assess and address gaps and barriers 
in accessing needed health services, 
including behavioral and mental health

• Addressing and removing barriers to 
care

• Building relationships with payers 
and healthcare providers, including the 
sharing of data across partners to foster 
health and well-being

• Contributing to the development of a 
competent healthcare workforce

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



9Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #8

Build and support a diverse and skilled public 
health workforce

• Providing education and training that 
encompasses a spectrum of public 
health competencies, including technical, 
strategic, and leadership skills

• Ensuring that the public health 
workforce is the appropriate size to 
meet the public’s needs

• Building a culturally competent public 
health workforce and leadership that 
reflects the community and practices 
cultural humility

• Incorporating public health principles in 
non-public health curricula

• Cultivating and building active 
partnerships with academia and other 
professional training programs and 
schools to assure community-relevant 
learning experiences for all learners

• Promoting a culture of lifelong learning 
in public health

• Building a pipeline of future public 
health practitioners

• Fostering leadership skills at all levels

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



10Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #9

Improve and innovate public health functions 
through ongoing evaluation, research, and 
continuous quality improvement

• Building and fostering a culture of 
quality in public health organizations and 
activities

• Linking public health research with 
public health practice 

• Using research, evidence, practice-
based insights, and other forms of 
information to inform decision-making

• Contributing to the evidence base of 
effective public health practice 

• Evaluating services, policies, plans, and 
laws continuously to ensure they are 
contributing to health and not creating 
undue harm

• Establishing and using engagement 
and decision-making structures to 
work with the community in all stages of 
research 

• Valuing and using qualitative, 
quantitative, and lived experience as 
data and information to inform decision-
making

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



11Created 2020

ESSENTIAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH SERVICE #10

Build and maintain a strong organizational 
infrastructure for public health

• Developing an understanding of the 
broader organizational infrastructures 
and roles that support the entire public 
health system in a jurisdiction (e.g., 
government agencies, elected officials, 
and non-governmental organizations)

• Ensuring that appropriate, needed 
resources are allocated equitably for the 
public’s health

• Exhibiting effective and ethical 
leadership, decision-making, and 
governance

• Managing financial and human 
resources effectively

• Employing communications and 
strategic planning capacities and skills

• Having robust information technology 
services that are current and meet 
privacy and security standards

• Being accountable, transparent, and 
inclusive with all partners and the 
community in all aspects of practice

THIS SERVICE INCLUDES:



Created 2020 

 

The 10 Essential Public Health Services 

Glossary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Community is a group of people who have common characteristics; communities can be defined by 

location, race, ethnicity, age, occupation, interest in particular problems or outcomes, or other similar 

common bonds. Ideally, there would be available assets and resources, as well as collective discussion, 

decision-making and action. (Turnock, BJ. Public Health: What It Is and How It Works. Jones and Bartlett, 

2009) 

 

Equity is defined as a fair and just opportunity for all to achieve good health and well-being. This requires 

removing obstacles to health such as poverty and discrimination and their consequences, including 

powerlessness and lack of access to good jobs with fair pay, quality education and housing, safe 

environments, and healthcare. It also requires attention to health inequities, which are differences in 

population health status and mortality rates that are systemic, patterned, unjust, and actionable, as 

opposed to random or caused by those who become ill.   

 

Health is a state of complete physical, mental and social well-being and not merely the absence of disease 

or infirmity. The bibliographic citation for this definition is: Preamble to the Constitution of WHO as adopted 

by the International Health Conference, New York, 19 June - 22 July 1946; signed on 22 July 1946 by the 

representatives of 61 States (Official Records of WHO, no. 2, p. 100) and entered into force on 7 April 

1948. The definition has not been amended since 1948. 

 

Healthcare sector is defined as entities that provide clinical services, mental health services, oral health 

services, provide or pay for services for individuals, or facilitate the provision of services to individuals. 

Entities in this sector may include hospitals, health systems, health plans, health centers, behavioral health 

providers, oral health providers, etc.Law(s) refer to the aggregate of statutes, ordinances, regulations, 

rules, judicial decisions, and accepted legal principles that the courts of a particular jurisdiction apply in 

deciding controversies brought before them. The law consists of all legal rights, duties, and obligations that 

can be enforced by the government (or one of its agencies) and the means and procedures for enforcing 

them. (Garner, B.A. editor. Black’s Law Dictionary. 8th ed. West Group; 2004) 

 

Law(s) refer to the aggregate of statutes, ordinances, regulations, rules, judicial decisions, and accepted 

legal principles that the courts of a particular jurisdiction apply in deciding controversies brought before 

them. The law consists of all legal rights, duties, and obligations that can be enforced by the government 

(or one of its agencies) and the means and procedures for enforcing them. (Garner, B.A. editor. Black’s 

Law Dictionary. 8th ed. West Group; 2004) 

 

Population health is the health outcomes of a group of individuals, including the distribution of such 

outcomes within the group. The field of population health includes health outcomes, patterns of health 

determinants, and policies and interventions that link these two. Population health approaches are 

community or policy non-clinical approaches that aim to improve health and wellbeing of a group of 

individuals. This differs from population health management which refers to improving clinical health 

outcomes of individuals through improved care coordination and patient engagement supported by 

appropriate financial and care models. (Adapted from Kindig and Stoddart). 

 

 

 



Created 2020 

 

The 10 Essential Public Health Services 

Glossary 
 

 

 

Public health is defined as the science of protecting the safety and improving the health of communities 

through education, policy making and research for disease and injury prevention. (CDC Foundation). 

 

Research is a systematic investigation, including research development, testing, and evaluation, designed 

to develop or contribute to generalized knowledge. (United States Department of Health and Human 

Services. Healthy People 2020. Washington, DC) 

- Community-based Participatory Research (CBPR) is a collaborative approach to research that 

equitably involves all partners in the research process and recognizes the unique strengths that 

each brings. CBPR begins with a research topic of importance to the community, has the aim of 

combining knowledge with action and achieving social change to improve health outcomes and 

eliminate health disparities. (W. K. Kellogg Foundation, Community Health Scholars Program, 2001 

quotes from Minkler M, and Wallerstein N, editors. Community-Based Participatory Research for 

Health. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Inc.; 2003) 

 

To view the complete 10 Essential Public Health Services, visit https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-

files/EPHS-English.pdf.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 9 


	April 15th  2024
	Aa Complete packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	April 1 2024 Minutes
	Abatement letter April 15, 2024
	Sheet1

	#6
	Brent Burleigh County Impact
	IMPACT Burleigh

	Brent ED Project listing
	Burleigh

	Brent Multifamily Projects
	Brent Regional Council Century Code
	Chapter 54‑40.1
		54‑40.1‑01. Legislative findings and purpose.
		54‑40.1‑02. Definitions.
		54‑40.1‑03. Regional council ‑ Membership.
		54‑40.1‑04. Regional council ‑ Powers and duties.
		54‑40.1‑05. Reports.
		54‑40.1‑06. Dissolution of regional council.

	#7
	Leben report
	A91rs9qrj_ofqjxf_86o.tmp
	#8
	Munson 1
	Munson 1-1
	Chapter 23‑35
		23‑35‑01. Definitions.
		23‑35‑02. Public health units ‑ Core functions.
		23‑35‑02.1. Tribal health units.
		23‑35‑02.2. Public health units to adopt onsite wastewater recycling treatment guide.
		23‑35‑02.3. Onsite wastewater recycling technical committee ‑ Appointment ‑ Duties.
		23‑35‑03. Boards of health.
		23‑35‑04. Health districts ‑ Formation ‑ Contracting for services.
		23‑35‑05. Health districts ‑ Expansion ‑ Merger.
		23‑35‑06. Health districts ‑ Dissolution ‑ Withdrawal.
		23‑35‑07. Health district funds ‑ Financial report.
		23‑35‑08. Boards of health ‑ Powers and duties.




	Aa Complete packet
	Binder1.pdf
	A91rs9qrj_ofqjxf_86o.tmp
	Munson 1-1
		23‑35‑09. Abatement and removal of nuisance, source of filth, and cause of sickness.
		23‑35‑10. District boards of health ‑ Acquiring and disposing of property.
		23‑35‑11. Budget.
		23‑35‑12. Local health officers.
		23‑35‑13. Penalty.

	Munson 1-2
	Munson 1-3
	The 10 Essential Public Health Services

	Munson 1-4



	Aa Complete packet
	Binder1.pdf
	A91rs9qrj_ofqjxf_86o.tmp
	#9




